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MOAB CITY - AUGUST 28, 2008 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 

(Transcriber's note: Speaker identification 

may not be accurate with audio recordings) 

CHAIRPERSON : I ' m not used to be the chairperson on 

this board . Bear with me a little bit. Let me go ahead and 

cal l t he Board of Adjustments meeting to order today. On the 

agenda we need to go ahead and approve the minutes of August 

20 (inaudible) so has everyone has a chance to look over the 

minutes for August 20? 

MR . SPEAKER (?): Yeah , there's an omission . 

CHAIRPERSON: Omission . 

MR . SPEAKER (?): Just the part where I declared 

that I ' d worked for the Carlson ' s previously . 

CHAIRPERSON: Oh , okay. I'll propose then if you 

want to go ahead and have that put in there is that we go 

ahead and have that correction made and then just review it 

and approve the next meeting. 

I ' d like us to go ahead and get started on the 

agenda , the response to the appeal, the decision to approve 

the Lion ' s Back Preliminary Master Plan Development and just 

a recap , we heard about half the case the last time we were 

here . We'd like t o move onto the remaining issues which are 

whether the approval of the Master Plan Development complied 

with the relevant Utah code and local ordinances and I think 
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1 what we ' d like to do here , is there anything in - we've all 

2 reviewed the memorandum that was submitted by the applicant . 

3 Is there anything with respect to this particular issue 

4 that's not included in your memorandum that you want to go 

5 ahead and address or make argument on? 

6 MR. SHEPHERD: Yes , there is . 

7 CHAIRPERSON : Okay , great . Give me a second to 

8 turn to that here. 

9 Is there anything the board needs to say before we 

10 get into it? No? 

11 Okay . Mr . Shepherd . 

12 MR. SHEPHERD : Yes , thank you, Madam Chair . I 

13 t h ink when we left off part of our presentation last time was 

14 that we had noted that the city had not responded to Pages 11 

15 through 15 of our narrative that refer to provision Section 

16 17 . 65 , I guess that would be Chapter 17 . 65 , several 

17 provisions that we maintained are not addressed in the 

18 preliminary plat and therefore are violations of the code. 

19 And we did come up with a Utah Rules of Civil Procedures 

20 section to the extent that that does apply , that basically 

21 states and I quote , this is actually URCP 12(h) and if we 

22 were in a court of law in Utah it says , "A waiver of the 

23 defense. A party waives all defenses and objections not 

24 presented either by motion or by answer or reply ." And so we 

25 still stand by that claim that we believe the city has waived 
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1 any kind of response or defense -

2 CHAIRPERSON : Well , it was the board's decision to 

3 table the matter until we had additional time so I don't 

4 think that's going to constitute a waiver on the city' s part, 

5 any (inaudible) to what you were arguing . We were simply 

6 just splitting the proceedings in half because they were too 

7 long. I don ' t think Rules of Civil Procedure would apply 

8 here anyway. 

9 MR . SHEPHERD: Okay , and given if that is , in fact , 

10 the case, we'd like to go over some specific provisions that 

11 we - and also because the city will argue that we had the 

12 burden of proof in this case - to some specific things that 

13 we believe are not in any of the records , in fact , and 

14 therefore continue to be violations of the code. 

15 There is for example the code on Section 16 . 08 . 010 

16 says that the "applicant has to file with the zoning 

17 administrator for examination and subsequent approval or 

18 disapproval by the Planning Commission eight black and white 

19 prints of the preliminary plat prepared in conformance with 

20 the provisions of this t i tle. Prints shall be filed at least 

21 15 days prior to the Planning Commission meeting" in this 

22 case which was May 8 , 2008, "at which time the plat may be 

23 considered and shall be accompanied by (inaudible)" etc. As 

24 I think I stated at the last hearing , if I could just pass 

25 out these exhibits, Madam Chair. I think before the last 
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1 hearing I put in a GRAMMA request for the city for all the 

2 documents (inaudible) there on Exhibit 1, "all submittals 

3 made by the developer or proponent of the Lion ' s Back Resort 

4 Development entered on 175 acres near the head of the Slick 

5 Rock Trail in Moab, Utah," and so I assumed that would 

6 provide me with all the documents that were submitted in 

7 regard, again by the developer and I did not - and then the 

8 second one is the same as I explained last time because the 

9 records apparently were removed and I was told I would have 

10 to refile the GRAMMA request to get them back and so I did 

11 that, the identical request and I looked at them again today 

12 and neither time that I looked in the records were there 

13 eight black and white prints of the preliminary plat prepared 

14 in conformance with the provisions of this title. So I think 

15 -we believe that's a violation of the section that I quoted 

16 there and not only that, we think it affects the public 

17 notice process again because the public is not, was not 

18 advised and did not - these plats were not available , we 

19 think for them to prepare for the public hearing. 

20 Under - again Section 17.65.030 it refers to 

21 several items that need to be in the preliminary plat. If 

22 you look - and these are all again contained and starts on 

23 Page 11 of our narrative, building instructions, for example, 

24 under that Subsection AD, "Buildings and structures are 

25 adequately grouped so that the corresponding required acreage 
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1 as set aside as common open space or public amenity as 

2 required by this chapter." 

3 Now if you look in the preliminary design 

4 guidelines I guess which was a document that was submitted 

5 with the plat , under Page 242 there ' s an index . There is a 

6 provision under that that appears on Page 1642 of those 

7 preliminary guidelines, it says dedicated open space . 

8 There's nothing under that text or that title that speaks 

9 anything about the required acreage . Assuming that this 

10 means required acreage, the corresponding required acreage to 

11 open space, there's nothing- t here is a section of open 

12 space in the guidelines, I'm going to call these the 

13 guidelines , again the preliminary design guidelines , on open 

14 space, but there ' s nothing in there about that meets this 

15 provision under required acreage. 

16 Under Subsection E of that same section, "The site 

17 plan establishes , where applicable , the concisely designed 

18 buffer to sensitive natural features including natural 

19 drainages and visually significant ridges or other landscape 

20 features included in the required site inventory." Again , 

21 you look at the guidelines. There are some landscape 

22 guidelines in there but nothing in the guidelines again 

23 addresses specific design criteria for buffers or 

24 specifically states that there will be buffers to sensitive 

25 natural features including natural drainage and visually 
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1 significant ridges. 

2 Subsection F, "individual lots, building structure, 

3 streets and parking areas are situated to minimize and 

4 mitigate the alterations of natural features , natural 

5 vegetation and topography . " Under this preliminary design 

6 guidelines again , nothing in the index that addresses this 

7 requirement whatsoever. There is a provision that appears on 

8 Page 10 entitled Parking Spaces but there ' s no language 

9 addressing the quote, "minimize and mitigate the alteration 

10 of natural features." 

11 

12 

MR. SPEAKER (?): Page 10 of what? 

MR . SHEPHERD : This document here, the preliminary 

13 design guidelines. 

14 Subsection G, "The site plan accommodates and 

15 preserves any features of historic , cultural or archeological 

16 value." There is nothing the preliminary plat , the word 

17 archeological doesn ' t even , as far as I could , it 's a very 

18 thick document obviously but there is 

19 MS. SPEAKER (?): Which subsection are you looking 

20 at? I didn ' t mean to interrupt , I ' m sorry , which subsection 

21 are you talking about (inaudible} features? 

22 MR. SHEPHERD: This is Section 17.65.030 Subsection 

23 A, Subsection G. 

24 CHAIRPERSON: Feature of historic, cultural or 

25 archeological value? 
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MR . SHEPHERD : Exactly , yes. 

CHAIRPERSON : Are you maintaining that because they 

didn ' t reference anything with respect to archeological value 

that it isn ' t in compliance with the code? 

MR . SHEPHERD: Yes, that's what we ' re alleging and 

primarily because the word archeological , I couldn't find it 

anywhere in the plat , it's not even mentioned. 

CHAIRPERSON : You are aware that the code has an 

"or clause" in there, it doesn't require that it accommodates 

features of historical , cultural and archeological value , 

right? 

MR . SHEPHERD : I'm sorry, could you say that 

CHAIRPERSON : You are aware that that code 

provision has an "or clause" in it rather than an "and 

clause"? 

MR. SHEPHERD: Yes. Archeological - accommodate , 

preserve any features of historic, cultural or yes , the word 

cultural I wasn ' t able to find in the plat either and we 

believe that's a violation of, not only a violation of this 

provision of the city code but of state and federal laws that 

require any kind of construction or moving ahead with a 

project must be in compliance with NIGRA and other laws that 

protect cultural sites. So there's no indication that 

there's even been a study. 

CHAIRPERSON : Can you explain to us how you would 
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1 classify this site as a cultural site? 

2 MR. SHEPHERD: Well, I don't think you can classify 

3 this site as a cultural site until you do the studies , 

4 required studies to find out whether there are petroglyphs, 

5 historical prehistoric sites, paintings that exist on the 

6 site which are required by federal law . 

7 Subsection H, floodways , ridges as expressed with a 

8 hillside development ordinance, areas of geological hazard 

9 and slope in excess of 45 percent. There ' s no mention again 

10 in the guidelines or the plat of slopes even though this is a 

11 very - portions of this area or near it are very steep indeed 

12 and there ' s no analysis of whether there ' s potential 

13 geological hazards or landslides , that kind of possibility or 

14 even sedimentation that could result . 

15 And also, there is - let's see, on the narrative, I 

16 believe it starts on Page 13, looking for the significant 

17 features - oh , there it is . Under the code Section 

18 17.65.100 , significant features plan , subsection D-A, "A 

19 significant features plan shall include natural and cultural 

20 features from the concept site inventory that will be 

21 protected delineation of open space or have been integrated 

22 into the design of the MPD by other means . " Again , no 

23 mention of cultural or archeological sites in the plan, not 

24 to mention the need for any kind of studies of such sites . 

25 Open Space Plan, subsection B, with all the criteria 
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1 listed on our narrative 1 through 3, subsection A there is -

2 I did find in the documents as provided as a result of the 

3 GRAMMA request, there are some plans, I don't know if an open 

4 space plan is in there or not in a separate document. I 

5 can' t remember the name of it. It's about this long and this 

6 wide , some kind of preliminary vision document I think is 

7 what it ' s called but none of these plans are in the plat . 

8 You can look in the index, there ' s no open space plan in the 

9 plat that includes Items 1 through 3 . Same thing for utility 

10 plan , subsection B. 

11 Let me back up a litt le bit, Traffic, Trails and 

12 Circulation Plan, subsection C. There ' s nothing in the plat 

13 - I believe there is something addressing a traffic plan of 

14 some sort in the plat that is a copy of a state plan , UDOT 

15 possibly but there's no independently constructed or crafted 

16 traffic plan. 

17 Utility plan, subsection D, nothing in the 

18 guidelines . So I could go on on there but in the interest of 

19 time I will skip onto the specific standards - this is now 

20 the SAR Zone standards under Section 17.32.010 , subsection 

21 C5, Building designs that present an appealing visual 

22 appearance . Okay . We could probably stipulate that there 

23 are some pictures I suppose in the plan of some of the homes 

24 that would be - I suppose we could stipulate to that even 

25 though it's not specifically stated in there that they will 
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1 construct such buildings. It ' s a matter of interpretation 

2 whether they' re visually appealing . 

3 CHAIRPERSON : Mr . Shepherd, in the interest of time 

4 so we can get into some in depth analysis on some of this , 

5 are you alleging that basically they didn ' t comply with any 

6 of the provisions of this section because it simply wasn' t 

7 mentioned in documents you have? 

8 MR. SHEPHERD : No . I don ' t think we ' re saying that 

9 - we ' re saying that they haven ' t complied with any of them . 

10 The ones that listed in our narrative , I think we're saying 

11 they haven' t complied with . 

12 CHAIRPERSON : Okay , and that ' s (inaudible) 

13 s pecifically referring to . You ' re saying they didn't compl y 

14 with any of the code provisions put into your narrative on 

15 the simple fact that they ' re not in your documents that you 

16 have , is that what you ' re alleging? 

17 MR . SHEPHERD: Primarily because they' re not 

18 a ddressed in the way they are laid out in the code i n the 

19 documents . They' re not- either they ' re not addressed in the 

20 document at all or if they are addressed , they ' re not 

21 sufficiently addressed as required by law . 

22 CHAIRPERSON: Okay , because I feel like this is a 

23 r ecitation of the code and I ' m not getting any real concrete 

24 information about how it violates the code . 

25 MR. SHEPHERD : Okay. I guess we have pretty much 
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1 made our point in that regard. I think it ' s pretty hard to 

2 argue that it ' s not a violation of the code if the plat 

3 doesn't contain the information required by law. So that 

4 would be our contention . 

5 CHAIRPERSON : Okay. 

6 MR . SHEPHERD : And if I may , Madam Chair , just one 

7 - I assume you ' re wanting me to skip over the other examples 

8 of the -

9 CHAIRPERSON : No , I ' m not asking you skip over 

10 anything but I would like for us to refrain from just doing a 

11 recitation of the code . If you have some in depth analysis 

12 about , you know, certain evidence in the record that 

13 demonstrates that it ' s a violation of certain code 

14 provisions , then certainly we want to hear that . But if your 

15 narrative that you've provided to the Board speaks for itself 

16 and we ' ve all got that and have read that. 

17 MR. SHEPHERD: The narrative doesn ' t point out the 

18 s pecific violations that we are alleging . It points out the 

19 code violations and says that these are not adequately 

20 addressed and what I ' m doing is giving some examples of that . 

21 MR. SPEAKER (?) : (Inaudible) open space plan that 

22 

23 

you mentioned? 

CHAIRPERSON : Yeah , that was actually one that 

24 was .. . 

25 MR . SPEAKER (?) : And have the city show us their 
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1 side of that particular side, is it there or not there. 

2 MR. SPEAKER (?): If I can, it would be helpful for 

3 us since the brief that was submitted by the appellant here 

4 does not give us any notice of what it is they find 

5 objectionable under the relevant code section. If they could 

6 confine themselves to the specifics that they think this 

7 application fails to meet and then I would defer to the staff 

8 who reviewed that in great detail as to what their analysis 

9 showed and I think probably the developer is going to want to 

10 be heard from as well if there ' s a question as to whether or 

11 not a certain standard is not met because I know that they 

12 went through a lot and the record will probably reflect the 

13 t echnical analysis there. So that would be my suggestion . 

14 CHAIRPERSON: I think that preferable because we do 

15 want to avoid just getting into recitation of the code and a 

16 blanket statement , didn't comply because it ' s not anywhere in 

17 the documents . We understand that that ' s your argument. Are 

18 t here any other more specific details other than that 

19 argument? 

20 MR . SHEPHERD: Yeah, I can try to be more specific. 

21 Under the code , it ' s Section 17.32.010, subsection C-7, it 

22 states that the plat must contain a description of streets, 

23 parking areas and other automobile infrastructure that to the 

24 extent practical are visually minimized . If you look under 

25 the guidelines under Page 42 it does not have a , it does have 
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under subsection E - excuse me , subsection A, vehicles and 

parking areas but it does not - it gives a description of it 

bu t i t doesn ' t mention anything or have a requirement that 

the automobile infrastructure , to the extent practical , are 

visually minimized . In fact, there is a letter on the very 

front , April 20 , 2007 letter from a Michael Badger that 

describes a 5000 to 6000 square foot auto service garage . 

This is in direct violation of Section 17.32 . 020 which 

specifically prohibits certain structures or activities that 

will threaten the environment o r threaten the water quality 

and it specifically prohibits automotive service facilities . 

So that is a direct violation of the code . They actually 

have that in the p lat . 

020 one? 

CHAIRPERSON : Which provision are you looking at , 

MR. SHEPHERD : Which section, Madam Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON : I ' ve got it . 

MR . SHEPHERD : And under Item 8 of that same 

section, buildings clustered together and an abundance of 

pedestrian and non-motorized trails . There are a couple of 

maps in the plat and I was able to find , there ' s a larger one 

also . There ' s a map under Exhibit A in the plat that is 

probably the best , most descriptive map of this development 

and maybe it ' s under the guidelines , that I can ' t locate 

right now but it is under Appendix A and there is a key in 
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1 that map that states "Internal Trail System" on the key. 

2 Looks a lot like that map right there that ' s sitting next to 

3 Ms. Coppell , and next to that word in the key there is 

4 nothing and then if you look on the map, there are no trails 

5 on the map whatsoever. So the map that has been provided to 

6 the public in the plat and in the documents I was provided in 

7 the GRAMMA request , there are no internal trail systems and 

8 t herefore that ' s a violation of this provision which requires 

9 that there be abundant pedestrian and trail systems. And as 

10 indicated by that key I think that maybe the intention was to 

11 add that in later but it ' s simply not there . 

12 MR. SPEAKER (?) : Appendix A is in the work the 

13 developer submitted? 

14 

15 

16 

MR. SHEPHERD: Yes, it's in one of these documents. 

MR. SPEAKER (? ) : Did we get a copy of that? 

MR . SPEAKER (? ) : No, because we had no idea they 

17 were (inaudible) . We can probably provide that to you but-

18 CHAIRPERSON : My understanding is that the 

19 guidelines (inaudible). 

20 MR. SPEAKER (?): And the appeal , actually 

21 everything we centered around was this appeal that they had 

22 provided which listed just pretty much the whole code as 

23 these sections . So without specifics , again , we were at a 

24 loss as to where to go with that . 

25 MR. SHEPHERD: Madam Chair , Exhibit A is actually 
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1 Page , right after Page 42 of the preliminary design 

2 guidelines and then if you look at the key which is in the 

3 lower lefthand corner of that, it ' s ki nd of hard to read and 

4 especially without , I don ' t have glasses but down towards the 

5 bottom there is a provision, there is an item that says 

6 internal trail system and if you look to the left of that , 

7 it ' s blank and there are no trails on Exhibit A. And I 

8 actually found this map from the GRAMMA request t hat is blown 

9 up. It ' s much larger and much easier to read and it ' s the 

10 same map without the trail system on it . 

11 Item 11 under that same subsection says 

12 preservation of existing topography by encouraging minimal 

13 e xcavation and site grading. There ' s no mention of this in 

14 the plat . 

15 CHAIRPERSON : I ' m going to stop you again . I 

16 understand your argument is a lot of these things aren ' t 

17 mentioned and I get that and we ' ve read the information that 

18 you ' ve provided and that ' s in your narrative , I would really 

19 like to keep it to specific details above and beyond you feel 

20 like it ' s just not in the plat . We understand that and I ' m 

21 just doing that really in the interest of time because we 

22 still have a lot to get through and we want to give you as 

23 much time as we can 

24 MS. FITZGERALD: It ' s not that we don't feel it's 

25 in the plat, it ' s not in the preliminary plat . So it ' s not a 
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1 feeling . That's why he's tryi ng to put in specifics. 

2 MR . SHEPHERD: Actually, Madam Chair , I ' m done with 

3 that . I ' m ready to move on to the (inaudible) issue at the 

4 Court's discretion. 

5 CHAIRPERSON: Does the city care to respond on that 

6 particular issue of compliance with SAR Code and (inaudible)? 

7 MR . SPEAKER (?) : I guess my first response is , I 

8 don't know how you respond to an appeal that doesn't tell you 

9 what they' re appealing until we get to the hearing . This is 

10 the first we've heard of any o f this. Their appeal brief 

11 simply recited the code and didn't tell us what the issue 

12 was. I'm certain that the applicant and the developer here 

13 and the staff could probably respond to each and every one of 

14 these points, point by point. I mean , there ' s a very , very 

15 detailed record of submittals about trails and road widths 

16 and utilities and lighting and every element that ' s in this 

17 plan and open space and so forth . If the appellant here is 

18 saying it just doesn't meet that standard, I ' m sure they 

19 would probably say, well, it does and here's where we 

20 addressed it . So that - I i magine that the developers 

21 probably want to be heard on this question and probably staff 

22 as well to explain , you know , how they reviewed the criteria 

23 and what renderings and designs were submitted. 

24 MS. SPEAKER (?): I will say it was really 

25 difficult for me to follow along exactly what standards 
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1 (inaudible). It would be helpful, I don't know, (inaudible) 

2 summary and it was all over the place I was struggling to 

3 keep up with (inaudible). If I could just get a summary of 

4 the area , things that are missing and then we'll find them 

5 and provide (inaudible). 

6 CHAIRPERSON: I took a summary of some but not all . 

7 Well, if we could hear from the developer and usually what we 

8 try to do (inaudible) for the developer to basically satisfy 

9 an inquiry then we ' ll go ahead nad ask- I think starting out 

10 the applicants indicated in Section 17.65 . 030 , common space , 

11 we can start with the common open space provision and just 

12 kind of go through that for us to get an idea of whatever 

13 (inaudible) . 

14 DEVELOPER : I ' m Tom (inaudible) and this is Cal 

15 (inaudible ). Cal is the project architect . I think 

16 (inaudible) open space using the board. 

17 CHAIRPERSON: Do you mind if we crowd around it? 

18 DEVELOPER : (Inaudible) sometimes they' re in the 

19 documents , sometimes in the drawings . They show in a number 

20 of different places so as we go through them (inaudible) come 

21 over here and say what the issue and we'll show you 

22 (inaudible) . 

23 DEVELOPER 2: Let me say there are like 34 

24 exhibits . They range from engineering drawings , they range 

25 from architectural drawings , they range from site plans and 
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1 the drawings that we (inaudible) have presented in front of 

2 the public has been these drawings and there are plenty of 

3 trails on these drawings. 

4 MR . SPEAKER (?): Let them say the issue and we'll-

5 CHAIRPERSON: Can you talk to us a little bit about 

6 the common space or the common open space? 

7 DEVELOPER 2: Open space, this is the open space 

8 drawing. It basically defines the various types of open 

9 space . This is a naturalized or the darker areas and this 

10 area is the passes , in other words the trails are going 

11 through the passes . That's the only place where we can have 

12 trails and then we have (inaudible) which is very limited, 

13 which are some of the tennis courts and things like that. 

14 All this area here is - we could have done like 50 percent, 

15 55 percent, it's 77 percent is naturalized open space . 

16 DEVELOPER : But is the exhibit that shows the open 

17 space. It was submitted to the staff in each of the hearings 

18 that we ' ve gone to , work sessions, we presented this . 

19 DEVELOPER 2 : And here are all the percentages and 

20 the (inaudible) . 

21 MS. SPEAKER (?): And it is in the preliminary plan 

22 documents. 

23 CHAIRPERSON: The next one -

24 SPEAKER (?): I believe they mentioned traffic, 

25 trails (inaudible) . 
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1 DEVELOPER: Traffic and trails , we have the 

2 engineering drawings 

3 MR . SPEAKER (?): Anything that you ' re showing not 

4 something that was submitted into the record previously? 

5 DEVELOPER: No. These the original drawings I ' ve 

6 been showing for every meeting. 

7 MR . SPEAKER (?): And submitted (inaudible)? 

8 DEVELOPER 2: Right, and when architects do things , 

9 it ' s this size drawings. It ' s not the ones you can provide 

10 for the (inaudible) people to carry around. This is the size 

11 drawings that we go by and they're scaled while the ones in 

12 the book may not be scaled. So this represents all the 

13 traffic, all the streets, the grading for all the streets and 

14 actually I don't know on this drawing but we ' ve actually 

15 given them names. Names will probably show up on another 

16 drawing. This shows the (inaudible). 

17 (inaudible conversation) 

18 DEVELOPER 2: Now I have to admit that one that 

19 reduced in that - the reduced set did not have all the trails 

20 on it. 

21 CHAIRPERSON: We notice that there's a very faint 

22 blue line and I can' t tell, are those internal trails? 

23 DEVELOPER 2: No they ' re some of the water 

24 interests we have. 

25 (inaudible conversations) 
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1 SPEAKER (?) : (Inaudible). Can you point a few of 

2 them out , what they are? It 's showing up very faintly . 

3 MR . SHEPHERD : How about the cite plan accommodates 

4 and preserves any feature of historical, cultural or 

5 archeological value? 

6 DEVELOPER: We had a site assessment which is in 

7 the big book in which there aren ' t any cultural or historic 

8 things on the site . In fact the section that we are 

9 developing was a campsite and it ' s (inaudible) are that we ' re 

10 developing and it was trash , total trash , but the part that ' s 

11 missing is if you look at the development , we stay away , all 

12 of our open space abuts any (inaudible) or anything like 

13 that. The people who buy a lot cannot develop that . That ' s 

14 forever green. So in concept , I didn't put that in the 

15 design guidelines because the design itself is keeping people 

16 away from it, all the natural features. 

17 DEVELOPER : And should that (Inaudible) two parts 

18 to it and so we showed you where the open space is and as 

19 part of the final plan submission per the code, (inaudible) 

20 sets of covenants , conditions and restrictions and that will 

21 deal with how there ' s open space (inaudible) protected and 

22 preserved . So we show you where they are and that documents 

23 needs to be submitted and signed off and approved by the city 

24 and that became a record with the plat. 

25 CHAIRPERSON: And that ' s an effort to minimize any 
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1 impact on surrounding environment and that kind of thing. 

2 DEVELOPER : And it's also- it's going to show you 

3 open space and that ' s the mechanism for preserving the open 

4 space . So that document makes sure it stays open space . 

5 SPEAKER (?) : On the open space (inaudible) talks 

6 about is total acreage of open space and acreage of each open 

7 space tract. 

8 DEVELOPER 2 : This is the total acreage of the 

9 (inaudible) and these are the percentages and you ' ll find in 

10 there that there's a table that also lists the open space and 

11 the acreage . 

12 CHAIRPERSON: I notice it ' s actually also on this 

13 as well at the very bottom. 

14 DEVELOPER 2 : Not one document can have everything 

15 on it . 

16 CHAIRPERSON: I understand that. 

17 DEVELOPER 2 : This is all over the place and that ' s 

18 what they reviewed . 

19 CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Can you talk to us a little 

20 bit about - I guess in your d i scussion about the CC&Rs and 

21 the way this is laid out is that how you plan to address 

22 (inaudible) natural features like the (inaudible) and things 

23 like that? 

24 DEVELOPER 2: We have our landscaping plan, we have 

25 three different distinct areas. We have one that you would 
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1 be walled a round the house. In other words , if there is a 

2 wall , within that little area they can have 'x ' amount of 

3 lawn , they can do more in there . If it ' s visible from the 

4 open space then that planting has to relate to the open space 

5 so there is no big distinction. And then the open space we 

6 have basically , once it ' s planted and we have temporary 

7 irrigation, that opens space has to stay the same way . The 

8 association can ' t go in and start planting in that open 

9 space . There are three individual areas . 

10 

11 docs . 

DEVELOPER : And that will be memorialized in the 

12 CHAIRPERSON : Talk to us a little bit about parking 

13 and where ' s that at and (inaudible) at. 

14 DEVELOPER 2 : Well there ' s two issues with parking , 

15 one is we minimize the amount of roads . Basically the roads 

16 are as narrow as we can be . We then required each house to 

17 have its own t wo cars in a two-car parking garage and they 

18 could only temporarily park in the driveway, like if they 

19 have a guest or something like that . So we ' ve minimized the 

20 impact of the car on the development. 

21 MR. SPEAKER (?): And you address that in the 

22 design (inaudible)? 

23 DEVELOPER: Yes, and that ' s in the design 

24 (inaudible) . 

25 CHAIRPERSON : Where are they on this plan or any of 
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1 those? Do you have them actually mapped out? There is some 

2 language about minimizing them the visual impact of them. 

3 DEVELOPER 2 : Well first of all, (inaudible). 

4 CHAIRPERSON : They're attached to each unit? 

5 DEVELOPER: Right. 

6 MS . SPEAKER (?): They' re around to the back , 

7 they' re not around to the front? 

8 DEVELOPER 2: Right in other words the philosophy 

9 is, the roads are basically (inaudible) to get to your 

10 garage . The trails are your sidewalks that are on the other 

11 side of the (inaudible) and so basically we're asking in the 

12 design dialogue for your architect to design the side which 

13 faces the trail as the front of the house. So this would be 

14 the front of the house and you can see the trails coming 

15 through and going to the houses and on the other side by the 

16 garages which is like an alley, works like an alley . It's not 

17 a street, doesn ' t even have sidewalks. 

18 MR . SPEAKER (?): It has I assume curb and gutter 

19 on the streets? 

20 DEVELOPER : The streets we ' re all doing a rolled 

21 curb so it's a little more natural. 

22 CHAIRPERSON: Can you talk to us a little bit about 

23 floodways and geologic hazards and how those have been 

24 addressed in your plan? 

25 DEVELOPER: We have had that studied and there are 
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1 no geological hazards that any of our units are involved in . 

2 CHAIRPERSON : Is that in your (inaudible)? 

3 DEVELOPER 2 : (Inaudible) reports , geological 

4 reports . She asked about geological reports. 

5 DEVELOPER: I think it's in one of the 

6 (inaudible) . I think it was submitted by Buckhorn . 

7 CHAIRPERSON : Is there a table of contents in here? 

8 What's a raptor assessment? 

9 

10 

11 

DEVELOPER 2 : A what? 

CHAIRPERSON : A raptor assessment , do you know? 

DEVELOPER : Well, we wanted to find out whether 

12 there was any heat - basically we went a little bit to the 

13 wild life and especially the raptors and discovered that 

14 basically the area is not a good area for raptors because of 

15 the - first of all (inaudible) and the type of formations are 

16 not very good for raptors and plus the amount of small 

17 animals along their property , especially where we ' re building 

18 was very minimal and so there wasn't any real food for them . 

19 (inaudible conversation) 

20 

21 

MR. SPEAKER (?) : (Inaudible) site assessments . 

MR. SPEAKER (?) : It's Exhibit 5 in this book . 

22 CHAIRPERSON: So this letter , August 27 , 2007 

23 indicates an assessment was done. It ' s Buckhorn , right , that 

24 does this? 

25 DEVELOPER: Uh-huh (affirmative). 
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1 CHAIRPERSON : And the site plan appears to be 

2 outside of identified hazard areas. So this is how you 

3 basically comply with subsection 7? 

4 MR . SPEAKER (?): Harold, do you have a problem? 

5 What's your feelings on this letter that was submitted that 

6 there's no-

7 MR. SHEPHERD: I haven't seen the letter. I would 

8 have to read it first. I mean, I guess in response to all 

9 the issues that I've raised? I guess I'm not understanding 

10 your question. 

11 MR. SPEAKER (?) : Well, one of the things you 

12 mentioned was trails not being listed on the plat and the 

13 open space and then these gentlemen are showing us some of 

14 this information so I wanted to hear your opinion on it. 

15 MR . SHEPHERD: I think that - specifically with the 

16 trails I guess we stand by our argument and I do note that 

17 maybe some of the members of the board might have different 

18 versions of this map but there are some different versions 

19 that are floating around that does have lines , does have a 

20 line in this key next to the words internal trail system 

21 (inaudible) but it's not in this plat and I think in response 

22 to a number of things that the proponents have mentioned 

23 here , there are - some of the provisions we've mentioned 

24 don ' t specifically require that they be in the plat but they 

25 do be considered by the city in considering this development 
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1 and I think our problem sort of relates back with that , that 

2 if it ' s not in the plat, if it's not in the documents that 

3 were provided to the public, it kind of relates back to our 

4 initial argument about due process . We don't think the 

5 public has -now we're kind of learning about a lot of some 

6 of these issues and where they are located, but how' s a 

7 member of the public suppose to figure this out before the 

8 public hearing? 

9 DEVELOPER : Let me answer that. All these 

10 documents, large scale were on exhibit and you can't - the 

11 word plat is a misnomer when you do a preliminary 

12 subdivision . I mean , you can ' t put everything on one "plat". 

13 When we get to the final plat all that needs to be on there 

14 will be on there but right now it ' s proposed many drawings, 

15 engineering and everything that ' s going into this. There is 

16 no way that you can look at one drawing and say, well, it 's 

17 not on there and we print them for various reasons like the 

18 reason that one was printed is just to show the person whose 

19 buying what the overall plan was. We didn ' t put on any topo 

20 or anything like that. It was just to make sure we got into 

21 the book what the plan was and that will be refined when we 

22 put it in there . 

23 DEVELOPER : The bottom line it the submission was 

24 made as you said (inaudible) plus a series of drawings and 

25 like that and if the appellant wanted to sit down with us and 
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go over it , we ' d be happy to do it, we're happy that we ' re 

doing it now , maybe clarifying some answers . For instance it 

keeps coming back to the issue of the trail, he expects to 

see some in the legend relative to trails . All this legend 

is showing is how much square footage is devoted to trails , 

it doesn ' t have legend, it wasn't intended to . (Inaudible). 

The fact of the matter is we t hink we put together a very, 

very compelling application, addressed each of the issues 

that had been raised , went over it with staff, staff reviewed 

it, determined that it was compliant, had gone through the 

checkl ist, certified it as being completed and let it go to 

the hearing process which is where we are now . So we're 

having to keep going down the list and trying (inaudible). 

MR. SHEPHERD: Madam Chair , may I respond to that? 

CHAIRPERSON: I would like for them to have the 

opportunity to present everything first . 

Number 7 was the last one other than the master 

plan development (inaudible) as stated in the objectives. 

Mr. Shepherd, I didn't see that you had objected to 

that particular provision in your narrative, that the master 

plan development doesn't advance the purposes of the chapter , 

am I correct in that? 

MR. SHEPHERD : I think we did have that in our 

narrative and I think basically we would stick to that 

argument basically on what we're presented to the board so 
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1 far for violations of the code. 

2 CHAIRPERSON : Do you have any response to the 

3 argument that the MPD doesn't advance the purposes of the 

4 code? 

5 

6 

DEVELOPER : Of the what? 

CHAIRPERSON: Of stating the objectives and 

7 characteristics of (inaudible) ordinance? 

8 DEVELOPER 2: The whole (inaudible) in the zone 

9 (inaudible) one is to preserve open space and site 

10 percentages and (inaudible) . The other one i s to reduce the 

11 impact of the automobile and roads so that you produce 

12 pedestrian lanes . The whole plan it based on a pedestrian 

13 system of trails that lead to all the features in the 

14 development , that you don ' t have to walk down sidewalks , 

15 you ' re walking on trails and that was part of it. And to 

16 protect certain environmental things on the site which is 

17 basically what we are doing . We ' re not touching the area 

18 that is pristine up there. We're not building on that area . 

19 We ' re only building on an area that has been a camp and has 

20 been RV ' d t o death basically . 

21 There is one thing in there about lighting and 

22 lighting we are to have only lights and we have a lighting 

23 plan . 

24 CHAIRPERSON: That was going to be my next 

25 question. Has there been a signage plan and a lighting plan? 
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1 DEVELOPER : There is a signage plan, there is a 

2 lighting plan that gives sizes , that tells what kind of 

3 lights there are. Our guidelines are very stringent on the 

4 kind of lights even in the house , how the glare out of the 

5 house. You can't light the side of the building . It has all 

6 those. 

7 CHAIRPERSON: Thank you. 

8 DEVELOPER : The process to rate the SAR zone and 

9 the MPD went through a fairly lengthy public review process. 

10 We were there , we were listening, we saw what was required 

11 and we spent close to a year putting plans and submissions 

12 together (inaudible). So we ' re very proud of this 

13 submission. 

14 CHAIRPERSON: Well, we appreciate your time in it 

15 definitely . Phasing plan, was that something that was 

16 discussed as well? I mean, you can see on the plat there's 

17 four phases. 

18 DEVELOPER: Right, and as part of our next step in 

19 the review process, we submit a final development plan . 

20 We ' ve got a draft of an agreement (inaudible) into effect but 

21 that ' s t he next stage but we are showing (inaudible) the 

22 phasing lines are shown on the plan and there will be an 

23 agreement memorializing (inaudible ) that shows how the 

24 phasing is , what are the different infrastructure components 

25 of the phases and then as we come in with each of final plats 
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for each of those phases we do subdivision improvement 

agreement that piggy backs on the phasing plan to make sure 

that we ' re doing the overall public improvements. 

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Next provision talks about 

codes, covenants, restrictions. You indicated to me that 

there are going to be codes, covenants and restrictions and 

was that discussed in the meeting as well? 

DEVELOPER 2: Right. We actually developed a 

checklist for this and went down as we identified each of 

these items noting that they had been addressed on some level 

in the documents that were submitted. Also, these documents , 

it ' s not like today they were made available. They've 

actually been from concept plan since November of last year 

and available for the public to review . This is actually 

what was submitted and has been on file. Especially on this 

phasing plan you can clearly see the trails and the roadways 

running through there. Again, the little (inaudible) thing 

that we handed out shows you again, the open space plan and 

goes on to utilities, etc. 

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. All right. I think that 

basically covers it. My understanding is you're not trying 

to dispute whether a title report was delivered and owned or 

anything like that, correct? 

MR . SHEPHERD: I don't think that ' s in our 

narrative, Madam Chair. 
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1 CHAIRPERSON: If the board is okay with it , I'd 

2 like to move onto pre-applicant (inaudible) preliminary plat 

3 does not meet SAR zone standards unless the city has any 

4 other response that it wants to include before we move on? 

5 MR. MCANANNY: I don ' t think we have anything else 

6 to add to that . If there are specific questions however that 

7 the board would ask, I would certainly suggest that you 

8 direct it to staff as to the specifics of what was reviewed 

9 and whether or not it complied in their view with the 

10 criteria . 

11 MR. SPEAKER (?) : One question I have , was there 

12 any traffic impact studies done as far as the Sand Flats Road 

13 itself? 

14 DEVELOPER : Yes , traffic study was done 

15 (inaudible) . It ' s included in that bound (inaudible) report . 

16 (inaudible) . I discussed it in detail at the Planning 

17 Commission and the City Council meeting. 

18 MR. SHEPHERD : Madam Chair, may I make a couple of 

19 responses to this particular item that we're on? 

20 DEVELOPER: Sure. 

21 MR . SHEPHERD: I don ' t think we have - I guess 

22 first off in response to some of counsel ' s comments about 

23 this being the first time that they' ve been on - the city has 

24 been on notice about these arguments that were just made . I 

25 guess I would again refer to the first time we made these 
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1 arguments which are again pages 11 through 15 of our 

2 narrative that everybody has in front of them. For example 

3 on page 11 is says "The 

4 CHAIRPERSON: We know what 11 thr ough 15 says. If 

5 you're just stating that you made it available through your 

6 narrative , I understand that . 

7 MR . SHEPHERD : We would argue it ' s in the narrative 

8 and always has been there. And we also in response to the 

9 proponent ' s suggestions about this is an exemplary project 

10 and an exemplary, I guess presentation, we agree that - well, 

11 I guess we could stipulate to it that the proponents have 

12 done a good job in this but when it comes to complying with 

13 law , it ' s not sufficient and that's what our argument is and 

14 an example again is under Section 17 . 65 . 030 subsection D, the 

15 preliminary development plan shall identify the final 

16 proposed location of all lots, tracts , parcels, etc . It does 

17 not identify that , nor does it identify 

18 

19 

20 

DEVELOPER : (Inaudible) . 

CHAIRPERSON : Please do. 

DEVELOPER 2 : This document here (inaudible) 

21 January 4, 2008 . 

22 MS. SPEAKER (?) : Was this a document that was 

23 available in the (inaudible)? 

2 4 DEVELOPER : There were 12 copies. 

25 MR. SHEPHERD : Where are they now? 
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(inaudible conversation) 

CHAIRPERSON : Do we want to keep things civil . 

Unless it ' s an actual genuine question (inaudible) . 

4 MS. FITZGERALD: That's a question because I would 

5 have gladly had I seen in the box under the table 

6 (inaudible) . 

7 CHAIRPERSON: Where are these placed normally? 

8 DEVELOPER: They're in the planning office if you 

9 come and ask , someone should provide them a copy. We also 

10 hang them on the wall and there ' s a set sitting on the table 

11 there. In this case we actually had 12 sets . 

12 This is the list of all the drawings that were 

13 included in this preliminary plan (inaudible) , specifically 

14 

15 

regarding lots, tracts and planned lots. It ' s labeled, 

Lion ' s Back Resort preliminary planned lots. This is the 

16 draft which shows the lots (inaudible) . 

17 CHAIRPERSON : Okay, could we take a look at that 

18 closer . Never mind, I ' ve got it. 

19 (inaudible conversations) 

20 MR . SHEPHERD : Madam Chair , while we ' re looking at 

21 that picture I guess my question would be if staff could 

22 identify the language in this picture or this text that 

23 identified the final proposed location of these lots , tracts 

24 and parcels? 

25 MR. SPEAKER (?): These are actually a preliminary 
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1 stage so I - there is a document in here that tells you 

2 basically the square footage of each lot as it is right now 

3 and even shows you which phase those (inaudible). 

4 MR . SPEAKER (?) : So you guys have 12 copies Dan 

5 said? 

6 MR . SPEAKER (?) : We did , yes . 

7 MR . SPEAKER (?) : And so each staff member has a 

8 set , (inaudible) gets a set? 

9 DEVELOPER : Right. They went to the Pl anning 

10 Commission so that was five of them right there. We had two 

11 in the drawer up there and certainly keep a file copy and 

12 admittedly they started disappearing out of the box although 

13 we had copies available for people to look at . 

14 MR . SPEAKER (? ) : So if someone submits a GRAMMA 

15 request you have 10 days to provide copies of everything? 

16 MR. SPEAKER (? ) : We do that much faster. I mean we 

17 have them usually available the next day for anybody to look 

18 at . 

19 

20 

MR. SHEPHERD: There were not 12 copies in the box . 

CHAIRPERSON: I don't think there ' s required to be 

21 12 copies though, I think just a copy is required to remain 

22 available . 

23 MR . SPEAKER (?): If some are submitted to the 

24 Planning Commission members then t hose would not be in the 

25 building and each planning commission member would have it. 
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1 MR. SPEAKER (?) : The idea of getting that many 

2 copies is to disburse them to the reviewing board . It's not 

3 to keep all of them on file all of the time . We did have a 

4 copy for sure and then some always available to the public 

5 upon request . 

6 MR. SPEAKER (?) : So if someone comes in they get a 

7 photocopy? 

8 MR. SPEAKER (?) : We have made a lot of copies of 

9 this for people. 

10 MR . SPEAKER (?): So it's a black and white? 

11 MR . SPEAKER (? ) : No, we can do color copies , you 

12 bet. 

13 MS . SPEAKER: There would also be people who come in 

14 and sit down at the table and they' ll be documents there and 

15 (inaudible). 

16 MR . SPEAKER (?) : Right. 

17 MR . SPEAKER (?) : The reason I was asking about the 

18 copies is this Exhibit A that you gave us if it was black and 

19 white you couldn' t see any of the stuff in it . I'm wondering 

20 if that ' s where some of the confusion came from on this? 

21 MR. SPEAKER (?): I ' m not sure. Everything that we 

22 have made copies of because they were submitted in color, we 

23 have color copied those to make sure that those lines and 

24 delineations were still apparent on the copy. 

25 MR. SHEPHERD: Madam Chair, the only other thing I 
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would say in response again to Mr . Rhinehart mentioning that 

the plans were in some of the documents, the plans again were 

not in the - of the plans that we had mentioned before, were 

not in the preliminary plat. So that . .. 

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Anything to add to that before 

going into the SAR section? 

SPEAKER (?): I don't have anything to add. I ' m 

sorry , are you going to move on to the SAR zone? I don't 

think I have anything to add. 

DEVELOPER 2: The SAR Zone says one, is a promotion 

of large scale master plan resort community. I don ' t think 

you can argue that. That's what this is, it ' s large scale 

master planned community . A mixed housing types, overnight 

accommodations, monthly rental, employee/work housing , 

private homes, dwelling types including families, multi

family and lodging . The plan has almost all of those in it. 

CHAIRPERSON : I think that ' s actually pretty 

evident from that documents, this document . 

DEVELOPER 2 : Building forms, masses and colors 

that compliment rather than contrast with the surrounding 

landscape . Basically using the pueblo style which has flat 

roofs , one and two stories and the colors are the colors 

basically are derived from the dunes and the sand. Building 

designs that present an appealing visual appearance and all I 

can say is that's in the eyes of the beholder . 
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2 

CHAIRPERSON : I understand that. 

DEVELOPER : But we have done everything possible in 

3 our design guidelineS to promote the pueblo feel and that 

4 buildings have to have three distinct masses which is very 

5 much a characteristic of pueblos so breaks up the building 

6 and it has a wall can only be, I can ' t remember, 15 feet long 

7 and then it has to have a jog of two feet and the garage , the 

8 face of the garage, for example , if you have a 2-car garage , 

9 you'll see in these sketches that they have to be offset . 

10 You can ' t have a 2-car garage door , it has to be single and 

11 it can't be on one face . It has to be offset by two feet. 

12 So it ' s trying to break up those masses in this form. 

13 CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Can you talk to us about 

14 whether there ' s any de-emphasis on automobile travel within 

15 the development? We talked about that a little bit . 

16 DEVELOPER 2: We did and the idea is you don't have 

17 to get in a car to go to the hotel, you get onto a path, a 

18 trail to go to the hotel. 

19 

20 

21 

dirt? 

MR. SPEAKER (?) : Are these trails gravel , paved, 

DEVELOPER : We ' ve been trying to figure that out 

22 e xactly . We ' ve been looking at some of the natural paving , 

23 in other words , a concrete with a mix sand in it so it looks 

24 like it ' s the same color as the sand around it. We've been 

25 looking at various things. That will have to be submitted in 
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1 our final plan . 

2 CHAIRPERSON : I think that you ' ve addressed the 

3 streets and parking areas and other automobile infrastructure 

4 (inaudible) minimize location of the garages and access to 

5 them. It appears that the buildings are as clustered 

6 together as they can be . Does anyone have anything to add to 

7 that or ... 

8 DEVELOPER 2 : Clustering is basically when you take 

9 all of this other space and then you put the units in here . 

10 The size of the lots are really structured with the size of 

11 the units. So we're not giving people a big lot . The lots 

12 are very small , you will be able to build the type o f units 

13 that we're talking about but you ' re not going to be able to 

14 build anything beyond that. So it ' s basically the size of 

15 the lot is forcing the buildings to be a certain size . 

16 CHAIRPERSON : Trail access from developments to 

17 nearby scenic recreational areas. Is that 

18 DEVELOPER: We have been talking to the mixed 

19 trails groups and we're trying to work out a bridge across 

20 Millcreek down here and we've walked the trail that comes up 

21 and attaches to this and we've also provided access down here 

22 and along here to hopefully a future trail and we've also 

23 widened Lion' s Back, we're widening Sand (inaudible) Road to 

24 help accommodate bikes and things like that . We're very 

25 conscious of that. 
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1 CHAIRPERSON: Okay . Can you talk to us a little 

2 bit about excavation and site grading and what your plans are 

3 for that and how you're going to work around the topography 

4 of the land? 

5 DEVELOPER 2 : I think if you look at the , let's 

6 see/ 

7 MS. SPEAKER (?) : There is a grading plan in the 

8 preliminary. 

9 DEVELOPER 2: There is a site grading plan . 

10 CHAIRPERSON : That really is all we need to address 

11 is if it was provided and discussed in the meeting as also 

12 with staff , so it ' s not our job to determine whether the plan 

13 is appropriate or not, it's just not what we ' re here for . 

14 DEVELOPER 2: There is a grading plan and the 

15 grading p lan , if you look at the roads and look at the 

16 grading plan you ' ll see that very little grading is being 

17 done for our roads and they ' re following the contours and so 

18 are the houses. Basically if you start cutting up for roads 

19 then you 're really going to have a lot of grading and you ' ll 

20 see very little cut for the roads. 

21 CHAIRPERSON: Okay . Are you going to have retail 

22 businesses that are primarily providing goods and services to 

23 overnight guests? 

24 DEVELOPER: Yes , we're going to have a bike shop , 

25 we ' re going to have basically a restaurant , things like that 
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1 for people. 

2 CHAIRPERSON : Does your lighting plan pay special 

3 attention to night lighting and things like that? 

4 DEVELOPER: Guidelines are very stringent and 

5 lighting plan is on that signage plan. 

6 CHAIRPERSON: Can you talk to us a little bit about 

7 that, Jeff, what was discussed with respect to the lighting 

8 plan? 

9 MR . MCANANNY: We specifically asked them about 

10 that because of concerns existing even in the county now but 

11 they are downward directed, they' ll be low voltage with the 

12 very efficient type of bulb in there that uses less wattage 

13 and still get a little more light from it . Again, I guess in 

14 a nutshell, that addresses the whole plan. 

15 DEVELOPER 2: The lighting for the trail system are 

16 LEOs, they're about this big and they ' re put in rocks and put 

17 into various things and on the plan you can see the kind of 

18 spacing and the lighting for - there is no street lighting. 

19 There is an intersection where people might cross, there are 

20 a down light on each side , a low wattage down light and 

21 that's the only place lights occur on the site. 

22 CHAIRPERSON: That's the end of the SAR zone 

23 provision of the code . 

24 Mr. Shepherd? 

25 MR. SHEPHERD: Yes, Madam Chair, thank you -
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CHAIRPERSON : Well, actually I ' m sorry, before you 

say anything is there anything else you want to add to that? 

MR . MCANNANY : I don ' t think so . One thing I did 

want to point out just for the record, the preliminary plan 

record that you have does include the grading plan . It ' s one 

of the plan sheets. We couldn ' t find it but it ' s in the 

stack. 

CHAIRPERSON : We found it . Go ahead . 

MR . SHEPHERD: Thank you , Madam Chair , in addition 

to the I guess we won ' t restate our argument that again this 

presentation, it ' s nice to know information always and we 

a ppreciate that from the proponent . Again , we don ' t believe 

because it wasn't contained in the preliminary plat , the 

issues of the trails , other things t hat were presented here , 

that it complies with the law and that ' s our bottom line . 

In addition to that , counsel noted that it ' s very 

difficult for us to prepare , it's difficult for the city to 

p r e pare for a hearing if the arguments are not contained by 

the appellant in their narrative. In addition we would argue 

the same thing , it ' s very difficult for us to prepare for the 

hearing if the arguments that the city is going to provide 

are not in a narrative . None of this was in the city' s 

response . 

CHAIRPERSON : But it's in the documents that were 

at the meetings and at the office building . (Inaudible) 
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documents. 1 

2 

3 

MR . SHEPHERD: Certainly, and again my point is 

specifically focused on the fact that if arguments are going 

4 to be made in a hearing, I ' m in agreement with counsel , they 

5 need to be in the city ' s response. 

6 The other thing is I guess maybe it would be good 

7 to get a response from the city or the proponent about the 

8 construction of a 5 , 000 to 6 , 000 square foot on sit e patron 

9 vehicle maintenance shop that is in again a letter from the 

10 proponent in the front of the preliminary plat that we 

11 believe is in direct violation of 17.32.020 . 

12 CHAIRPERSON: That ' s actually- I'm glad you 

13 brought that up because that is something we want some 

14 information on. 

15 What is that going to be used for? Is that going 

16 to open to the public , is it just for the patrons who are up 

17 at the resort , what ' s the purpose of it? 

18 DEVELOPER: It ' s the patrons of the resort and what 

19 it is, is one wash bay which will be recylcing and there will 

20 be a (inaudible) catcher thing unit . There will be two bays 

21 that people can put their jeeps or RVs and repair them with 

22 their own tools and that will also have a pan around it. 

23 That totals somewhere in the order of 400 or 500 square feet 

24 at the most . The rest of it for the maintenance of the 

25 development , the vehicles that maintain , the mowers , not 
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1 mowers but the vehicles that will be used to maintain the 

2 development, the hotel, the hotel maintenance, the hotel 

3 storage. So the little - unfortunately I used the word 

4 maintenance but when I say maintenance it is only those 

5 portions which would be for the repair of vehicles , things 

6 l i ke that but it ' s not a commercial maintenance , vehi cle 

7 maintenance area. 

8 CHAIRPERSON: Is the resort intending to profit 

9 from it or is it just to benefit whose living there? 

10 DEVELOPER 2 : I mean they probably have a coin 

11 operated wash but as far as that no , this is not a source of 

12 money. It ' s a source of convenience because it ' s ats the end 

13 of the loop . 

14 DEVELOPER : The whole idea there is take the 

15 maintenance of any vehicles out of the subdivision and put it 

16 into a specific area. That prevents spillage , oil or 

17 contaminates (inaudible) and we didn't want everybody working 

18 on their motorcycles and their vehicles in their driveways 

19 (inaudible) . 

20 THE COURT : Okay, and I recognize the prohibition 

21 but I read it to be for a commercial car bay or whatever it ' s 

22 called, commercial automotive service facility and this 

23 sounds to me like it ' s for the residential , for the plan 

24 that ' s being used for residential. I perceive the code as 

25 having this prohibition simply for commercial purposes . If 
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1 someone wants to interject or tell me that I' m wrong , I don ' t 

2 mind . 

3 SPEAKER (?) : Explain your argument to me. 

4 MR . MCANANNY : I think from the staff ' s prospective 

5 I think the concern was that the SAR (inaudible) prohibits 

6 sort of heavier , more commercial business uses but doesn ' t 

7 prohibit accessory uses that would go with resort type 

8 development and I guess what I would say is a contain ed wash 

9 bay is probably an accessory use that is an amenity for the 

10 lot owners that serves a purpose , it ' s actually a better 

11 design than not have one at all and rather than saying it ' s 

12 not an automobile repair garage , it ' s not like you' re going 

13 to- it ' s not a grease monkey and so I think that- if I can 

14 speak for the staff and maybe , Jeff, you can jump in on that 

15 having looked at this issue in more detail than I , I think 

16 that was what the intent was . 

17 MS . SPEAKER (?) : I wouldn ' t mentioning something 

18 on that . The section that called for prohibited use says for 

19 commerci al uses -

20 CHAIRPERSON : And that ' s exactly what-

21 MS . SPEAKER (?) : - this is not a commercial use . 

22 To me it ' s not an issue and insofar as protecting the drain 

23 water source protection area, this is a far better way to do 

24 this than having individual lots and property owners doing 

25 these sorts of activities on the property . (inaudible) . 
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1 MR. SPEAKER (?): That question was raised on a 

2 staff level and so we did call the applicant and asked them 

3 to clarify what was being proposed and we determined that it 

4 was not a commercial use. It's basically an amenity for the 

5 residents if they choose to use that. 

6 MR. SPEAKER (?): If there 's coin operated 

7 machinery there, would that make it a commercial use? 

8 MR . SPEAKER (?) : No I don't think so. I think 

9 they're just trying to offset their water costs because it ' s 

10 not going to be everybody in town can drive up there and use 

11 it. It will be specifically for those residents. 

12 CHAIRPERSON : One thing that did jump out at me, 

13 there is a maximum height restriction and based on the legend 

14 here as long as it's consistent with what ' s up there as far 

15 as height restrictions, it appears to me the buildings meet 

16 the height the restriction except for the car maintenance 

17 bay. It looks to me under the code provisions the maximum 

18 allowable height for residential and commercial buildings 

19 shall be 30 feet . The maximum allowable height for accessory 

20 buildings shall be 16 feet. I think this is probably an 

21 accessory building and I think that the height is 20 feet . 

22 Is it a problem to drop it -

23 DEVELOPER 2: (Inaudible). That ' s not a problem. 

24 CHAIRPERSON: How tall is it going to be? 

25 DEVELOPER 2: It won't be over 16 feet I ' ll tell 
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sorry. 

and if it says , if I said something else ... 

CHAIRPERSON : It appears to say 20 feet here. 

MR. SPEAKER (?) : It does look like 20 feet high. 

DEVELOPER: If it says 20 feet , that ' s wrong, 

MR . SPEAKER (?): The plat and paperwork says 20 

7 feet and that's what the Planning Commission and City Council 

8 voted on . 

9 CHAIRPERSON: Yeah, that could be a problem that we 

10 need to address. Yeah , it ' s not something - I mean , I don ' t 

11 think it ' s something that we can completely ignore . We 

12 probably ought to address it in our communications with each 

13 other . Do you want to address that now or at the end . 

14 MR. SPEAKER (?): In general , Jeff , Chris , if 

15 there ' s a mistake made, do these preliminary plats get 

16 amended for final plat? Does it have to go -

17 MR. MCANANNY: The issue for final plat is 

18 consistent to a prior approvals and code and to the extent 

19 that there is a discrepancy between prior approval and what 

20 the code says , I think it would probably be worked out at 

21 final . In other words, we're not usually in the habit of 

22 approving something that didn't meet the standards of the 

23 code . 

24 Just one point of order on this issue thought , it ' s 

25 not something that the appellant has raised in this appeal . 
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1 This is something that we kind of stumbled on as we ' re 

2 talking and I guess I would say I would confine the appellant 

3 to the issues they raised on their appeal despite the fact 

4 that they' ve gone into a lot of stuff here tonight that we 

5 didn' t know anything about before we got up here. 

6 MR . SPEAKER (?) : I don't know, that argument could 

7 be made because they submitted the entire paragraphs that 

8 they didn ' t. 

9 CHAIRPERSON: We're required to look at the code 

10 and pay, you know, special scrutiny to it and I do have to 

11 say , I don ' t perceive this 4-foot difference - it ' s clearly 

12 an erroneous error or clearly erroneous. If it ' s something 

13 that is going to be easily fixable without changing 

14 everything that ' s already been approved , I don't see it ' s 

15 something that rises to the level of clearly erroneous which 

16 is I think a much higher standard than just did the Planning 

17 Commission err . Perhaps we can think about making some kind 

18 of a recommendation that this be remedied at the next level 

19 or something like that. 

20 We do need to move onto the water well issue and I 

21 would like , I think that the narrative is quite detailed and 

22 we appreciate the work and research that went into that. 

23 It ' s not an easy issue and I think there was a great deal of 

24 analysis and reasoning involved with the documents that were 

25 provided. I ' d like to hear from the developer, some details 
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1 or from Mr. McAnanny about basically your response to what 

2 was in the narrative . 

3 MR . MCANANNY: There are a couple of things . First 

4 the comments alleged that the city failed to make adequate 

5 provisions that this facility or this development could be 

6 served with culinary water and you ' ve got a very thorough 

7 record that shows the city' s water conservation plan and it ' s 

8 in the record at Exhibit FO and that ' s one of the documents 

9 that the staff rely on ( i naudible) process. I wanted to 

10 quote from a couple of provisions from that because it ' s only 

11 (inaudible) document and I don't want to waste a lot of time 

12 on it but a couple of the salient points at Page 1 the 

13 culinary water use has never exceeded 42 percent of the 

14 available culinary water rights available to the city. You 

15 know, clearly we have unused capacity . The issue is, as the 

16 (inaudible) argues that the staff did not consider that 

17 culinary water means for this project were the ability to be 

18 served by the city . I think that the report definitely gives 

19 some, a very clear rebuttal of that . 

20 Another point, the city has adequate capacity to 

21 serve 18 , 473 persons (inaudible) that's well over currently 

22 population . Again, we ' re talki ng about what capacity is 

23 available to serve the development . Another quote that I 

24 pulled from page 14 of t he report , the city has 21.7 percent 

25 surplus in total water capacity as measured against peak 
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1 demand at any given time. The staff ' s informed judgment was 

2 that this project could be served with water improvements 

3 that , of course, the developer is going to have to install on 

4 this part of the plan and you ' ve got detailed submittals 

5 about utilities and that sort of thing . I just don ' t even 

6 think there is an argument as to whether or not this facility 

7 can be served. I would submit to you that the appellant here 

8 has essentially just made some very broad generalizations 

9 about scarcity of water in the west and the problem we don ' t 

10 dispute generally and sort of extrapolated to this project 

11 and said it ' s going to be a problem for the city. The 

12 informed judgment of the staff was that it's not going to be 

13 a problem and we don't approve development that can ' t be 

14 served with utilities. That is simply a base line assumption 

15 that every developer has to meet. So that would be the first 

16 thing that I would say. 

17 The second issue that they raised was that the city 

18 has failed to provide adequate well head protection in its 

19 approval process for the well head protection (inaudible} and 

20 one of the documents that ' s before you , the big map 

21 delineates , I ' m referring here , the blue line here is the 

22 well head, (inaudible) Springs Well Head Protection Area. 

23 This is again in the submittals that were reviewed by the 

24 staff and the City Planning Commission and the Council. 

25 MS. SPEAKER (?) : I need to clarify that. This 
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1 document was created by staff not by the (inaudible) . 

2 MR. MCANANNY: Correction . Let me just point out a 

3 couple of things that I think are fairly obvious once you 

4 look at this is that it ' s only a relatively minor portion of 

5 the project that is actually in the Well Head Protection 

6 area. The more intensive uses like the lodge I believe are 

7 outside that area. It's mainly these , this grouping of 

8 dwellings that ' s in the Well Head Protection zone. The city 

9 as you know, has a Well Head Protection ordinance designed to 

10 impose some design standards and criteria on developments 

11 that have a potential for impacting ground water resources 

12 that are important to the city' s water supply. One of the 

13 documents that I ' m going to offer to you tonight and I guess 

14 I'll refer to it because our exhibits, I think they stop at 

15 0 . I think I ' ll just call these Exhibit P, which I ' ll send a 

16 copy around . It's one of the submittals that was reviewed by 

17 staff and it ' s the- it ' s entitled Preliminary Water and 

18 Sanitary Sewer Plant. One of the notes there says that all 

19 sanitary means are the eight inch PVC accepted drinking water 

20 source protection zones where materials will conform with the 

21 requirements of the state of Utah and the city of Moab . The 

22 assertion was made by the appellant here that this staff 

23 really gave no consideration, or the City gave no 

24 consideration to well head protection and the (inaudible) 

25 Springs Well Head Zone is an important area . We'll submit to 
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1 you that the staff did give consideration to those issues and 

2 that the drinking water source protection standards that we 

3 have in our ordinance will be addressed at later stages in 

4 the process . Remember, we're at the preliminary approval 

5 stage . We're not at final design. At final plat one of the 

6 things that you should be aware of is that detailed 

7 engineering design for things like water, sewer , storm sewer, 

8 all of those design features are done in very minute detail 

9 and reviewed by the city. This is the preliminary and in 

10 fact we don ' t go ordinarily into that level of detail early 

11 on. We look more at the conceptual level but the city has 

12 taken that into account. Even so, there have been these 

13 protections that have been built into the approval documents. 

14 The other thing that you should be aware of is that 

15 the city is in the process of negotiating a free annexation 

16 agreement with the developer here and one of the provisions 

17 in that agreement is that the developer buy with the city's 

18 source protection standards, at final . And in fact I was 

19 looking at some of the language that we had put in the draft 

20 agreement and, of course, that agreement isn't final yet but 

21 I'll try to pull that for you. It requires compliance with 

22 design standards and mitigation measures to assure that no 

23 water quality degradation occurs and that's the draft 

24 language in Section of 811 of our agreement that we've been 

25 working on for some months now. It actually goes a little 
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1 bit further than what our ordinance requires. 

2 The other thing I would point out to you is that 

3 t he ordinance doesn' t prohibit development in source 

4 prot ection zones . I t requires only that certain types of 

5 development be very carefully scrutinized and that we have 

6 protective measures , design standards implemented to try to 

7 preserve water quality and we ' ll submit to you that those 

8 issues will be addressed very, very carefully . Residential 

9 d e velopment is not prohibited in well head protection zones 

10 and incidentally, the well head protection zones that are at 

11 issue here , I mean , we ' ve got four zones that are (inaudible) 

12 t he ordinance but really the Zone 1 , if I ' m correct , does not 

13 e xist in the development area , if I understand that 

14 correctly. So we ' re really talking about Zone 2 , which again 

15 you can allow development in that area as long as you 

16 implement measures to prevent contamination sources . Well , 

17 what are those measures? Your zoning standards prohib it 

18 cer tain types of uses . So in other words , if the SAR Zone 

19 does not permit heavy industry , heavy types of , you know , 

20 pollutant generating businesses . So that ' s not going to 

21 occur and nor does this plan call for anything like that. So 

22 there ' s a number of other implemented measures that you can 

23 come up with in terms of strong water control that sort of 

24 thing but those will all be developed and implemented after 

25 final plat stage . 
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CHAIRPERSON: But there ' s no building going on in 

Zone 1? 

MCANANNY: No, in fact and Dan you can probably 

4 speak to that . If I understand correctly , Zone 1 is fenced, 

5 it ' s not 

6 DAN: Zone 1 is a very small area around Spring 

7 Head that ' s required to be fenced and that ' s down (inaudible) 

8 ranch house and behind there there ' s a fenced area 

9 (inaudible) Zone 1 . 

10 MS. SPEAKER (?): We have assumed this area would 

11 meet the most stringent standards of Zone 2 which is the next 

12 most stringent area so that this area is considered to be 

13 Zone 2 and would meet all those standards. 

14 CHAIRPERSON : Okay. Were the standards discussed 

15 at the meeting or anything like that? 

16 MS. SPEAKER (?): Our development team meeting? I 

17 believe we did talk about that somewhat with the applicant 

18 even, that that would have to be a step up on their behalf to 

19 mitigate the issue that could arise around that (inaudible) 

20 protection. 

21 CHAIRPERSON : What's typically done to minimize the 

22 destruction to Zone 2 , 3 and . .. 

23 MR . SPEAKER (?) : I think Dan could probably answer 

24 that better than I can. 

25 DAN: We have only recently had these source water 
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protection plans that the state basically required of 

(inaudible) water sources starting in 2001 that we implement 

- first we define the protection areas and then we implement 

a plan. So our plan for our source of (inaudible) 2001 . The 

developments that have fallen within our protection zones 

since that time have been primarily out by the golf course . 

We have several sources out in that vicinity. Some of them 

are (inaudible) Rock and Stone Crest and so through those 

processes of working in that approval thing, we stipulated 

conditions on those developments that would be part of the 

approval of those things. Those stipulations, some of the 

things that they are , for example with (inaudible) Rock, 

their storm water detention facilities have filtering system 

and a retake collection system so that any water that runs 

off the road that has residual hydrocarbons and what not , 

that perhaps collects in the bottom of the storm water basin , 

it ' s filtered and collected and goes into the sewer system. 

One of the other requirements that we required of 

(inaudible) Rock is that they develop a manual or 

informational packet , if you will , for the homeowners that 

describes what it means to be in a water protection area, 

that talks about the proper handling of pesticides and 

herbicides and fertilizers and household hazardous waste , how 

than can affect that and we would do a similar thing for this 

project as the final documents -
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1 CHAIRPERSON: Are these things discussed as the 

2 Planning Commission level as well? 

3 MR . SPEAKER (?): You know, I don ' t know that they 

4 wer e discussed heavily at Planning Commission. At Council, 

5 one of the council members discussed it , a couple of council 

6 members actually did meet with me prior to the meeting and 

7 asked me specific questions about these items. 

8 CHAIRPERSON : But are these restrictions and I 

9 guess preservation measures going to applied in this 

10 development project as they are in the others? 

11 MR . SPEAKER (?): Yes, like I said , we would- the 

12 sewer requirement , the sewer lines run through there would 

13 have to be to a standard . We will require the , for lack of a 

14 better word, pamphlet or brochure that goes to the lawn 

15 owners that talks about this is the water that they drink and 

16 these are the proper handling measures for residential 

17 material that you can get and have . None of the proposed 

18 uses - so there ' s a list of prohibited uses in the Zone 2 . 

19 Prohibited uses are animal feeding operations , underground 

20 storage of hazardous waste , landfill , septic tanks. There ' s 

21 four or five prohibited uses and none of those uses are 

22 proposed by this plan. 

23 MR . SPEAKER (?) : The other thing that's worth 

24 noting and it ' s in Section 13 . 18 . 050 B, when you talk about 

25 Zone 2 , it prohibits the location of a pollution source as 
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1 defined in the chapter which those are those uses that Dan 

2 just referred to unless it ' s contaminated discharges can be 

3 controlled with design standards and I guess the point is 

4 that we think that anything that might pose a potential 

5 source of contamination can be controlled with design 

6 standards , the city has experience with that in other 

7 developments , and that that will all be implemented at the 

8 final plan stage and be part of our pre-annexation agreement . 

9 We ' re not going to let it go by (inaudible). So I believe 

10 and I ' ll submit to the board that I think we covered it, the 

11 staff has covered it and that it will ultimately be 

12 addressed . 

13 CHAIRPERSON : Okay . All right . Does the board 

14 have anything that it needs to - I ' d like to submit this to 

15 the board for review and again , I'd ask the same 

16 considerations be given since this is a meeting where we need 

17 to talk amongst ourselves, I ' d like for us to be able to make 

18 our statements to each other without any public comments or 

19 interruptions unless we need clarification from someone 

20 specifically, we ' ll ask for it . 

21 MR. SPEAKER (?): I do have a question for staff . 

22 You mentioned that developer (inaudible) public sit in and 

23 listen to those meetings? 

24 MR. SPEAKER (?) : We have never denied anybody to 

25 come in . We ' ve never had anybody show up . It ' s not 
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1 necessarily a policy meeting. I mean, we don't advertise . 

2 Let's put it that way but certainly I think if someone 

3 inquired as to when they could come in or something , they 

4 would be allowed to be there . We ' re not an elected body 

5 though, so I don ' t know what kind of weight any of it would 

6 have on any of the law . What has happened is we've had 

7 several workshops throughout the entire process of adopting 

8 the SAR and MPD as well as just Tuesday night we have a nice 

9 workshop and they presented the entire project in that 

10 workshop and those are public and open to the public and it 

11 was certainly on the agenda that was published. You know, 

12 beyond that, the applicant has been available to answer any 

13 questions that may come up and certainly we've had all this 

14 material upstairs where anyone who wanted to could come in 

15 and ask questions about it . 

16 CHAIRPERSON : (Inaudible) meetings that have to be 

17 given notice or anything like that . They' re not put under 

18 the (inaudible) publication (inaudible) . 

19 MS. SPEAKER (?) : You know, even though I ' m 

20 (inaudible) and I know Jeff and I know the staff and if I 

21 have a silly question (inaudible) and they're always very 

22 open and they're always very nice , they're never- I mean I 

23 have a really stupid question and they always answer it. I 

24 can call them, I can go up there , you know if I saw this 

25 development and I was concerned about water rights or I had a 
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1 silly question about anything basically , I just don ' t have , I 

2 guess I don ' t have that kind of fear to go and ask questions 

3 as far as (inaudible) and I ' ll be looking (inaudible) I ' ll 

4 call Jeff or someone and get answers . So yeah , the workshop 

5 was really helpful last night and I was very surprised that 

6 no one showed up. It was only five or six people that showed 

7 up. 

8 CHAIRPERSON : Is your workshop in (inaudible) 

9 question and answer session? 

10 MS . SPEAKER (?) : Pretty much and we go through the 

11 pre- annexation agreements . 

12 

13 

CHAIRPERSON : Educate people on it? 

MS . SPEAKER (?) : Yeah , educate , yeah . And t h e 

14 developer was there and I got a lot of questions answered 

15 last night. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

CHAIRPERSON : Okay. 

MR . SPEAKER (?) : Are those advertised? 

MS. SPEAKER (?) : I believe it was on the agenda. 

MR . SPEAKER (?) : It was City Council? 

MS . SPEAKER (?) : Oh sure , yeah . 

MS . SPEAKER (?) : But not a City Council meeting? 

MR . SPEAKER (?) : No . 

CHAIRPERSON : Anyone have anything else to add? 

24 I ' m planning on recapping a few things just to refresh our 

25 memories from a week ago . 
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1 SPEAKER (?) : (Inaudible) one thing? We had, when 

2 we had read the appellants (inaudible) we had gone through it 

3 just on the issue of the submission , what had been prepared , 

4 what had been submitted to demonstrate (inaudible). We have 

5 done a little summary of what we had submitted in response to 

6 (inaudible) if it's helpful for you. 

7 CHAIRPERSON: We may have that actually but go 

8 ahead and bring it up . We had a summary. Thank you . 

9 (Inaudible) clarification of preliminary site plan is on file 

10 for review by the public. 

11 MR. SPEAKER (?0 : That ' s right . 

12 CHAIRPERSON : What about the design guidelines and 

13 open space? 

14 MR. SPEAKER (?) : All the documents that have been 

15 submitted are. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

CHAIRPERSON : So they 're all up together? 

MR. SPEAKER (?): Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON: Centrally located . Okay. How long 

have they been up there do you know? 

MR . SPEAKER (?): Preliminary? 

CHAIRPERSON : Uh-huh (affirmative) . 

MR . SPEAKER (?) : It's been oh gosh , do we have a 

stamped copy? February 19. 

CHAIRPERSON: Thank you. 

MR. SPEAKER (?): And prior to that the concept 
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1 plan was also available in November of 2007. 

2 CHAIRPERSON : Okay , thank you. All right. Does 

3 anyone have anything that they want to discuss or maybe recap 

4 and bring some things for discussion? I think what we're 

5 looking at , to recap last week we didn ' t make a decis i on as 

6 far as whether dues process was violated based on the notice 

7 provisions. My recollection is that is that the appellant 

8 was arguing that they were an affected party and entitled to 

9 heightened notice that goes above and beyond just notify 

10 publication , it includes notice by mail . I am not convinced 

11 that they were considered an affected party within the 

12 meaning of the code but many of the actual applicants were, 

13 or excuse me appellants were an affected party so I think 

14 that the standard that applies is the regular notice 

15 provisions which is notice by publication and posting in 

16 appropriate places within the city . Does anyone have any 

objection to that or any decent? 17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. SPEAKER (?) : Me. The code does mention 

affected entities and what's listed are various 

organizations, the county and school district . They were all 

notified - I 'm losing my train of thought. 

CHAIRPERSON: I think sorry, go ahead . 

MR. SPEAKER (?) : No, it ' ll come back. 

CHAIRPERSON : One of the things that we had 

discussed last week was with the affected parties is , there 
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1 are certain organizations and entities that are affected 

2 parties but none of them were present at either hearing , last 

3 week or this week and so the issue of whether they received 

4 actual notice by mail is kind of a moot point because none of 

5 them are the actual appellants here so I don ' t believe that 

6 another entity or organization has standing to raise that 

7 issue on their behalf without actually being authorized to do 

8 so . And my recollection is the appellants were alleging that 

9 there may be some people who water rights attendant to the 

10 property, maybe be affected by the development and that they 

11 were entitled to special notice or considered to be an 

12 affected party and I kind of think the same analysis applies, 

13 they ' re not here to raise that and there ' s nothing in the 

14 code that says someone who may have some water shares 

15 associated with it is considered an affected party under the 

16 meaning of the code . 

17 MR . SPEAKER (?) : My thoughts is since we ' re all 

18 residents of the city and we all use the water, we're all are 

19 affected but it ' s not practical to mail a letter to every 

20 resident in the community every time a development happens. 

21 It ' s not cost effective for one thing . I don ' t know how many 

22 developments happen a year and how many public meetings there 

23 are. 

24 CHAIRPERSON: I think that 's why the code actually 

25 puts in there these are the affected parties , if you 're not 
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one of these you ' re not an affected party within the meaning 

of the code. I think we're all impacted by it, we see it , it 

could impact everyone's water rights who have any kind of 

rights to that but everyone got the same amount of notice 

through publication and posting which is all that ' s required 

of the code. 

MR. SPEAKER (?) : (Inaudible) would be that the 

code might be changed , maybe that ' s an option, someone to 

change the definition of what an entity is. 

MS. SPEAKER (?) : Is there a definition for an 

entity? 

CHAIRPERSON : That was set forth as (inaudible) so 

13 it ' s pretty clear whose entitled to mailed notice. If you're 

14 not on the list, you don ' t get mailed a notice , you get a 

15 notice that everyone else gets. 

16 MR . SPEAKER (?) : If you ' re not a property owner 

17 within 100 feet . 

18 CHAIRPERSON : Yeah . 

19 MR. SPEAKER (?) : Which downtown could be a large 

20 number of residents. Being in the rural area, there ' s only a 

21 handful - and I ' m just talking ideas - maybe that definition 

22 could be changed to create something, I hate to say 

23 neighboring subdivisions -

24 CHAIRPERSON: But that 's kind of something that 

25 needs to be left up to (a) state legislature and (b) 
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MR . SPEAKER (?): Or the City Council. 

CHAIRPERSON : - City Council, yes. 

MR. SPEAKER (?) : Certainly not us. 

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, I agree. A lot of evidence was 

presented, documents reviewed as far as what notice was 

provided. I feel like the appropriate notice as required by 

law at each level of meeting that requires notice was 

provided and we've got those included in our affidavi t . So I 

would submit that I think the notice was provided for and 

documented and (inaudible) record. 

MS. SPEAKER (?): I think what ended up happening 

at least in the PNZ level and I ' ve been thinking about this a 

lot , you looked at the actual agenda. A lot of them were the 

SAR Zone, all these types of different zone changes but the 

actual- Lion ' s Back was kind of in the background per se but 

it was definitely spelled out in the agendas on the City 

Council level, it says Lion's Back Resort but I can see on 

the PNZ , if you ' re looking to see what's going on in the 

public notices, you would see amendment to SAR zone or 

preliminary approval (inaudible) things like that . If you 

don ' t know exactly what that is (inaudible) that ' s when you 

start asking questions but definitely on the council level it 

was definitely spelled out Lion ' s Back Resort . 

CHAIRPERSON: Okay . I actually see - we looked at 

this last week too with the posted notices as well, all 
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indicate that Lion ' s Back Village Development was going to be 

a topic on the agenda and sometimes it was on Page 2 but it ' s 

still there . Yeah , it ' s on each one . So I would submit that 

the due process was not violated because I think all those 

provisions were all met in compliance with the code . 

As far as whether the preliminary plat meets the 

code provisions (inaudible) provisions and whether it meets 

the SAR zoning requirements, we heard a lot of evidence on 

that . I feel like , I mean, the documents are here . We ' ve 

got evidence that they were made available to the public as 

early as November , sometime in November and then February as 

well and , you know , we went through line by line to make sure 

that it complies and I feel like it did . I think my only 

concern would be the vehicle maintenance shop , the height of 

it. I think I need to see a recommendation that it needs to 

be dropped down four feet so that it complies. I do not 

perceive that to be clearl y erroneous decision . It ' s only 

four feet , it ' s changeable (inaudible) or something like 

that. Does anyone have anything to add to that? 

MR . SPEAKER (?) : The other thing that I would like 

to mention about that would be the coin operated car wash . I 

can see why they would want to recoup some of their expenses 

but a coin operated service says to me commercial. If it ' s 

private , maybe the fees for that should be part of t he 

homeowner fees . There ' s a key on it or something that only 
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1 the homeowners have, something. But both of these things I 

2 think are minor and can be easily fixed by final plat. I 

3 don't see them as not meeting the intent of the preliminary 

4 plat portion of the code. 

5 CHAIRPERSON: Okay . As far as the well head issue 

6 goes , a lot of information as far as that ' s concerned. One 

7 of the things that ' s most compelling to me is the most 

8 restricted zone which is Zone 1, there's not any building 

9 even going along that zone and we recei ved I think incredible 

10 and reliable information that the other zones are going to -

11 the building that's going on in the other zones, there ' s 

12 enough restrictions in place to comply with all relevant code 

13 provisions and then enough safeguards and restrictions are 

14 put in place to minimize the impact upon the (inaudible) 

15 Spring and the (inaudible) issues or things like that. 

16 Does anyone have any input on that? Do you have 

17 anything to add to it? 

18 MR. SPEAKER (?) : I do have a couple of quick 

19 questions that clarify the sewer line that is mentioned. 

20 That's running to the city ' s main system and will be treated 

21 and there's no septic tank I guess is what I'm getting at? 

22 CHAIRPERSON: That's correct. 

23 MR. SPEAKER (?): And is there a map on the SAR, 

24 the water protection zone that shows Zones 1 and 2? 

25 MS. SPEAKER (?) : The entire area is zoned 2. The 
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1 entire area of development is in (inaudible) Zone 2 . Zone 1 

2 is not shown because it ' s not within the development area . 

3 MR . SPEAKER (?) : Are you asking if there ' s a map 

4 (inaudible) . 

5 MR. SPEAKER (?) : Yeah . 

6 MR . SPEAKER (?) : Yes , we have three different 

7 (inaudible) golf course and one for the wells out (inaudible) 

8 that are on file . 

MR . SPEAKER (?) : We have that here . 9 

10 MR . SPEAKER (?) : We ' ve received many requests over 

11 the last two years for them . I think we ' ve given out 10 or 

12 12 copies to various members of the public . 

13 MR . SPEAKER (?) : But Zone 1 is that piece by the 

14 ranch house . 

15 MR . SPEAKER (?) : It ' s a very small area . 

16 CHAIRPERSON : Does anyone want to make a motion? 

17 Am I allowed to make a motion? 

18 MR . SPEAKER (?) : I ' ll make a motion that the 

19 application for appeal be denied based on the information 

20 that we learned in the last two meetings . 

21 CHAIRPERSON : Anybody want to second that motion? 

22 MS. SPEAKER (?) : (Inaudible) . 

23 MR . SPEAKER (?) : The application for appeal be 

24 denied . 

25 CHAIRPERSON : Does anybody have any recommendations 
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1 as far as the - I never remember the name of the building, 

2 car wash utility building . Do we want to put some kind of 

3 recommendation if someone is making a motion to deny the 

4 application , do we want to make, does someone want to make an 

5 recommendation that that height restriction be addressed and 

6 remedied? 

7 MR . SPEAKER (?) : I ' ll amend my motion to include 

8 that 16 feet high. 

9 MR. SPEAKER (?): And the coin operated . I think 

10 we should change the -

11 CHAIRPERSON : Do we need to have some more 

12 discussion on that? I mean , I understand why - is it your 

13 position that it may be construed as a commercial? 

14 MR. SPEAKER (?): Well you have to pay to use it . 

15 CHAIRPERSON: I understand that. I understand that 

16 and I guess -and I looked in the code and there ' s not a 

17 definition of what's considered commercial, I was hoping it 

18 would have that but I guess when I think of commercial I 

19 think of it for profit or gain . When you look at HOAs that 

20 have clubhouse and things like that , there ' s a fee to use to 

21 the clubhouse . It doesn't make it commercial, that's things 

22 like maintenance and it's separate from the HOA fees and that 

23 kind of thing and it doesn ' t render it commercial . 

24 MR. SPEAKER (?) : Sure. But if you ' re not a part 

25 of the community you can't get into that clubhouse. 
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1 CHAIRPERSON : Okay , so are you asking for some more 

2 fair language saying that members of the community can ' t go 

3 up there and use it, only for the resort members? 

4 MR. SPEAKER (?) : Right . If it ' s coin operated, I 

5 can go up there and use it assuming no one yells at me but 

6 the way, at least the way it sounds now the community could 

7 use it and so that ' s why I was hinting at the key pad , 

8 something . 

9 CHAIRPERSON: Okay , I understand that. 

10 MR. SPEAKER (?) : That way only the property owners 

11 up there can get to it . It ' s their private facility and not 

12 commercial . 

13 

14 

15 

CHAIRPERSON : All right, do you want to amend your 

motion? 

MR . SPEAKER (?) : Yes . That the maintenance 

16 facility would have a keypad operated car wash, not a coin 

17 operated and that the height of the building would not exceed 

18 16 feet . 

19 CHAIRPERSON : Do we have the authority to expressly 

20 dictate something like using a keypad or do we need to keep 

21 it more vague saying they need to take appropriate measures 

22 to assure that it ' s just for the use of the resort members? 

23 MR . SPEAKER (?): I don ' t know if you can be that 

24 specific . 

25 CHAIRPERSON: I don't know whether we can either. 
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1 MR . SPEAKER {?) : Some level of securing the 

J 2 ~ building strictly for the residenti a l may be more appropriate 

3 I guess . 

4 MR . SPEAKER (?) : Use is limited to Lion's Back 

5 Resort p roperty owners . 

6 CHAIRPERSON : Members of the resort? All right . 

7 MR. SPEAKER (?): (inaudible) . 

8 MR . SPEAKER (?) : The motion would be to deny the 

9 application but request , recommend that the car wash facility 

10 b e only used by members of the resort and the height of that 

11 facility not exceed 16 feet . 

12 CHAIRPERSON : Okay. Does anyone second that 

13 motion? 

14 MR . SPEAKER (?) : I ' ll second it. 

15 CHAIRPERSON : All in favor? 

16 (Unanimous affirmative vote). 

17 CHAIRPERSON : Motion passed . We really appreciate 

18 everyone ' s t i me . I know that everyone worked really , really 

19 hard on this and there ' s issues that are kind of near and 

20 dear to one heart . So thanks for your time. 

21 (Whereupon the hearing was concluded) 

22 

23 

24 

25 -c-

69 



CERTIFICATE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing transcript in 

the before mentioned recording was supplied to me by 

Harold Shepherd and were transcribed by me and is a 

full , true and correct audio recording as set forth in the 

preceding page to the best of my ability . 

Utah . 

Signed this 2nd day of February , 2009 in Sandy, 

~ _.A.,k,»'--carcJYI'l ickson 
Certified Shorthand Reporter 
Certified Court Transcriber 

My Commission expires May 4 , 2010 



0 
020 (11 13:13 

1 
1 112) 3:25 8:24 9:7 48:11 52:11 53: 
1,3,5,8 85:7,23,25 

10 (31 6:6 34:13 58:10 
100 11182:16 
11 (151 2:12 4:21 15:9 31 :2432:1,2 
12 (51 32:22 33:9 34:17,19 58:11 
12(h [11 2:19 
13 (111:14 
13.18.050 (1155:23 
14 111 48:23 
15 151 2:13 3:19 31:24 32:2 37:4 
16 151 45:19,24 67:7 58:17 81:10 
16.08.010 [11 3:13 
1142 [11 5:4 
17.32.010 121 9:18 12:19 
17.32.020 121 13:6 42:10 
17.65 121 2:14,14 
17.85.030 1"1 4:18 8:20 17:8 32:12 
17.85.100 (11 8:16 
175 111 4:2 
18,473 [11 48:20 
19 111 59:22 

2 
2 (38) 17:21 18:5,17 19:6,16,21 21: 
6,12,15,22 22:12 23:1,6 24:1,7 28: 
6 30:6 32:18 36:8,17 37:14 38:6 
31:3,7,13 40:14 43:9 45:22,24 52: 
13 53:10,12,21 55:17,2414:1 85: 
23,25 

2-car 121 37:6,8 
20 !61 1 :7,8 13:4 45:20 48:1,3 
2001 121 54:1,3 
2007 131 13:4 24:20 59:25 
2008 131 1:1 3:20 32:19 
21 .7 [11 48:23 
242 111 5:3 
27 111 24:20 
28 (11 1:1 

3 
3 !31 8:241:7 83:21 
30 (11 48:18 
34 111 17:21 

4 
4 [11 32:19 
4-foot 111 47:10 
400 [11 42:22 
42 [31 12:23 14:24 48:12 
45 111 8:7 

5 
5 ,000 [11 42:7 
50 (11 18:12 
500 111 42:22 
5000 111 13:5 
55 111 18:13 

6 
6,000 (11 42:7 

Sheet 1 

Moab City Board of Adjustments August 28, 2008 
8000 111 13:5 ago 111 58:24 

7 agree 121 32:8 83:3 
agreement 1101 29:18,21,25 42:3 

7 121 25:1 27:15 51 :15,16,19,19,23 58:7 
77 (11 18:13 agreements 111 58:10 

8 ahead 1111 1:4,6,14,15,17 2:3 7:19 

8 121 3:20 13:16 17:7 41 :7 59:7 10:21 

811 111 51 :23 
alleged 111 48:3 

? 
alleging 151 7:3 10:3,1411:16 81:7 
alley 121 23:14,14 

?0 [11 51:10 allow 111 52:14 

A 
allowable 121 45:17,18 
allowed 121 57:3 66:16 

ability 111 48:16 almost 111 36:14 
able 151 7:16 13:19 31:10,11 58:16 already 111 47:13 
above 121 15:17 10:8 alteration 111 8:7 
abundance 111 13:17 alterations 111 8:2 
abundant 111 14:7 amend 111 58:12 
abuts 111 20:10 amended 111 48:15 
accepted 111 50:18 amendment 111 83:18 
access 131 36:2,14,19 a menity 131 4:24 44:8 45:3 
accessory 141 44:6,8 45:18,20 amongst 111 58:16 
accommodate 121 7:1 4 38:22 amount 141 21 :25 22:13 24:14 62: 
accommodates 131 8:12 7:7 20:1 3 
a ccommodations 111 38:12 analysis [7) 8:1 o 10:2 11 :9 12:6, 
accompanied 111 3:21 11 47:23 61 :11 
account 111 51 :11 animal 111 55:18 
acreage (9] 4:23 5:7,8,8,13 21:4,4, animals 111 24:15 
6,9 annexation 111 51 :14 

acres 111 4:2 answe r (5] 2:22 26:7 57:11,22 58: 
.cro .. l11 36:17 8 
a ctivities 121 13:7 44:24 answered 111 58:13 
a ctual 161 33:1 80:11 81:3,483:12, answers 121 28:25 58:3 
14 anybody 141 34:15 58:24 88:20,24 

ad 111 4:22 anyway 111 3:6 
add 191 14:9 31 :4 36:3,7 36:4 41 :1 apparent 111 35:22 
58:22 14:18 85:16 apparently 1114 :7 

addition (3) 41 :8,15,18 appeal [7) 1:18 14:19 18:6,8 48:24 
additional 111 3:1 47:2 88:18 
address 181 2:3 21:19 39:8 48:9,11, appealing 1411:19,25 18:7 38:22 
12 appearanc e 121 9:20 36:22 

addressed 1161 2:15 10:16,17,18, appears [8] 5:4 8:5 24:24 31:3 45: 
1911:18 18:18 23:22 27:6 30:8 14 48:1 
37:25 51:2 52:7 58:11 87:4 appellant llll 12:1 16:15 26:23 41 : 

addresses l31 5:21 6:4 40:13 18 48:24 47:1 49:6 50:21 80:6 
addntSSing 121 8:7 9:11 appellants 141 61:1 50:12 81:4,7 
adequate 131 48:3,19 49:17 appendix 111 13:23 
adequately 121 4:23 11:17 appliCible 111 5:15 
adjustments 121 1:2,5 applicant [8] 1:25 3:14 18:10 45:1 
administrator 1113:15 53:16 57 :11 
admit 111 11:16 applicants 121 17:8 80:11 
admittedly 111 34:10 application 151 12:5 27:6 88:18 87: 
adopting 111 57:6 3 81:8 
advance 121 27:19 28:1 applied 111 55:8 
advertise 111 51:25 applies 121 80:13 81 :11 
advised 111 4:16 apply 121 2:18 3:5 
affect 111 54:23 appreciate 141 29:12 41 :11 47:21 
affected 1121 10:7,10,12,18,24,25 89:16 
81 :9,11,14,18,24,25 appropriate 15J 31:11 10:15 83:5 

affects 111 4:14 68:20 69:1 
affidavit 111 53:7 approval 191 1:22 3:15 48:18 41: 
agenda 15J 1:6,18 57:10 13:12 64: 18 51:3,12 54:8,10 83:19 
1 approvals 111 48:17 

agendas 111 83:15 approve l-41 1:6,16,18 49:12 

Carolyn Enckson, CSR, CCT 
523-1186 

approved 121 20:21 47:13 
approving 111 48:21 
april 111 13:4 
archeological 191 6:13,15,23 7:1, 
4,8,14 8:21 20:3 

architect 121 17:13 23:10 
architects 111 19:6 
architectural 111 17:23 
area 1271 8:9 17:2 18:8,12 21 :25 24: 
12,12 28:15,16,17 43:6,15 44:22 
41:21 50:5,6,24 52:12,14 53:5,7, 
11,11 54:20 82:19 85:25 H :1 

areas 1111 8:1 8:6 12:21 ,25 18:7 21 : 
23 22:7 24:25 36:1,15 54:2 

aren' t 121 15:14 20:5 
argue !51 3:9 10:25 32:5 36:10 41 : 
18 

argues 111 48:15 
arguing 121 3:3 10:7 
argument 1111 2:3 12:15.17 15:14 
25:14 26:2 27:23 28:1 32:11 41:9 
41:5 

arguments 151 31 :22,24 41 :17,20 
42:2 

arise 111 53:18 
around 1121 14:19 17:15 11:8 21 : 
24 23:5 25:17 37:22 31:1 42:21 
50:15 53:5,18 

aside 111 4:24 
assertion 111 50:21 
assessment 141 20:4 24:6,8,21 
associated 11181:14 
association 111 22:6 
assume 111 11:5 
assumed 111 4 :3 
assuming 121 5:7 88:4 
assumption 111 49:13 
assure 121 51:21 88:21 
ats [11 43:11 
attached 111 23:2 
attaches 111 38:19 
attendant 111 81:8 
attention 111 40:2 
august 141 1:1 ,6,8 24:20 
authority 111 68:18 
authortzed 111 81 :6 
auto 111 13:5 
automobile 181 12:21 13:2 28:9 
37:12 36:1 44:11 

automotive 121 13:9 43:21 
available 1151 4:16 30:10,12 32:3, 
21 34:11,15,20 35:2 48:13,13,22 
57:11 51:25 84:9 

avoid 111 12:13 
away 121 20:9,14 

B 
background 111 63:14 
backs 111 29:25 
badger 111 13:4 
base l11 49:13 
based 141 28:10 45:12 80:5 81:18 
basically 1271 2:18 10:3 17:6 18:6 
22:4,13 23:7,9 24:10,12 25:1 27: 

020 - basically 



22,23 28:15018 30:19 33:25 36:190 
21 36:6o12 38:17,24 46:3 47:25 53: 
25 57:25 

basin 111 64:15 
bay 141 42:18 43:20 44:8 46:16 
bays 111 42:19 
bear 111 1:4 
became 111 20:22 
behalf 121 53:17 11:6 
behind 111 53:7 
beholder 111 36:23 
believe 1121 2:23 3:11 4:13 7:17 8: 
14 9:11 41 :11 42:10 &0:5 53:16 
H :8 61:4 

benefit 111 43:8 
beat 111 13:21 
bet 111 35:10 
better 141 44:9.22 53:23 55:13 
between 111 46:18 
beyond 141 15:17 38:12 57:11 60:8 
big 151 20:5 22:3 36:9 40:15 49:19 
bike 111 38:23 
bikes 111 38:22 
bit 1111 1:4 8:9 18:3 21:18 22:10 23: 
20 24:10 37:13 36:25 40:5111:25 

black !31 3:16 4:11 311:16 
blank 111 111:5 
blanket 111 12:14 
blown 111 111:6 
blue 121 19:20 49:20 
board 1141 1:2,4,5 2:7 11:13 17:14 
211:15 27:23 30:24 31 :5 34:25 66: 
9o12o14 
board's 111 2:25 
body [11 117:3 
book !31 11:10 20:5 21:19 
bottom 151 15:3 21 :11 28:21 41 :14 
64:15 
bound 111 31 :1 3 
box 131 33:3 34:10017 
break 111 37:10 
breaks 111 37:3 
bridge 111 38:17 
brief I2J 12:1 18:8 
bring 121 &9:7 60:3 
broad 111 41:7 
brochure 111 55:13 
brought 111 42:12 
buckhorn I2J 24:4021 
buffer 111 II: 16 
buffers 121 5:21 o22 
build 121 sa: 1 oo 12 
building 1201 4:21 5:25 9:19 24:15 
28:16017 21:3 34:23 38:17021 37:3 
41 :24 46:20 52:25 85:7,10 88:25 
67:1 88:16 61:1 
buildings 191 4:22 8:24 13:17 37:2 
38:3013 45:140 11o19 

built 111 111:12 
bulb 111 40:11 
burden 111 3:10 
business 111 44:5 
businesses 12J 31:21 52:19 
buy 121 20:11 51 :16 

Sheet2 

Moab City Board of Adjustments August 28, 2008 
buying 111 28:17 

c-7 111 12:19 
c5 111 1:19 
cal I2J 17:12013 

c 

call [1] 1:5 5:10 46:1 &0:14 52:20 
57:23 58:3 

called Pl l :5 43:21 44:17 
came 111 311:18 
camp 11128:17 
campsite 111 20:7 
cannot 111 20:11 
capacity 141 48:14o19o21 o24 
car 181 22:18 37:15 43:20 45:15 64: 
20 57:1 88:15 11:8 

care 111 18:3 
carefully I2J 52:407 
carlson's 111 1:12 
carry 111 19:8 
cars 111 22:15 
case 151 1:20 3:8010,20 33:9 
catcher 11142:19 
cc&ra 111 21:18 
centered 111 14:19 
centrally 111 51:17 
certain 1101 11 :10,1112:913:7 18: 
10 28:14 38:13 52:3017 60:25 

certainly [1] 11:12 31:5 34:9 42:1 
57:1010,12 

certified 111 27:9 
chair 1131 2:10 3:23 11 :4 13:14 14: 

51:16 65:19 
civil !31 2:17 3:5 32:25 
claim 111 2:23 
clarification 121 56:18 59:8 
clarify 121 45:2 111:18 
clarifying 111 21:25 
classify I2J 7:24o25 
c lause !31 7:7012013 
clear 121 48:18 62:12 
clearly 181 30:14 47:10o11 ,14 48: 
14 14:16 

c lose 111 28:9 
c loser 111 33:16 
c lubhouse 13117:19o20o24 
c lustered 121 13:17 38:3 
clustering 111 38:6 
code 14&1 1:23 2:16 3:12,13 7:206, 
11 ,18 8:15 10:12016021 ,22,2511:90 
11o1712:3o13o1913:10 14:20 16:40 
9 20:17 27:24 28:2 40:22 43:23 
46:16 46:17019,22 47:8 &0:11 11: 
13015023 62:105,7 64:4o6 611:3,11 
87:15 

codes 121 30:304 
coin 141 43:9 64:20022 88:15 
collected 111 64:16 
collection 111 64:13 
collects 111 64:15 
color !31 35:20o21 37:22 
colora !3138:17o20o20 
comes 12J 32:10 38:18 
coming 121 23:12 27:1 

23 15:25 27:12 30:23 31 :16 33:18 comments !31 31 :20 46:3 56:17 
35:23 40:24 41 :8 commercial I18J 43:5o20o21,24 44: 

chairperson l1221 1:3o3o10o 13 2:5, 5,18 45:306017 64:22 &7:120160170 
25 6:22025 7:6o11 o23 10:1 o10o20 20,22 88:11 
11 :3,7,21 12:1213:12o15 14:16 16: commission 1111 3:16019 31:15 
13 16:3 17:4015 18:3021 11:19 20: 34:8o22o23 46:6 47:16 49:23 55:10 
23 21 :10o14o11 22:10023 23:20200 3 
25 24:5,8020,24 27:13025 28:4022 common 151 4:2417:80918:404 
21:5012 30:2o18o24 32:2017025 33: communlcatlons l11 46:11 
5015 34:18 36:3o15o24 37:11o25 38: community 16131:9,11 61:19 67: 
14024 31:8,20 40:1 o5.21 o25 41 :70 24 68:1 ,5 
23 42:11 43:7 44:19 46:11 o23 46:1 o compelling 121 27:6 65:6 
8 47:8 52:25 53:13020 64:25 115:7 completed 111 27:9 
56:12 57:15 58:7o11 o15o22 51:6,11, completely (11 46:10 
15o11o20o23 10:1o21o23 11:23 12: compliance 151 7:2020 18:4 51 :20 
11017,23 83:103023 65:4,21 88:150 64:4 
20024 87:10,14.25 88:8o12o18o24 compliant 111 21:8 
11:5011014,16 complied 1411:22 10:709 31 :7 
chance 111 1:7 complies 131 41:14 64:12.15 
change 121 82:8 17:9 compliment 111 31:18 
changeable 11114:17 comply 151 10:3011 12:14 25:1 &5: 
changed 12162:7021 11 
changes 11163:13 complying 111 32:10 
changing 111 47:12 components 111 21:22 
chapter 141 2:14 4:25 27:19 65:25 concept 131 8:18 20:12 30:11 
characteristic 111 37:3 conceptual 111 81:10 
characteristics 111 28:5 concern 121 44:4 14:13 
checklist 121 27:9 30:7 concerned (2] 57:24 85:5 
choose 111 46:4 
circulation 1111:10 
cite 111 20:1 
city's [7] 3:2 41 :21 42:4 48:6 &0: 11 

concerns 111 40:9 
concisely 111 8:15 
concluded 111 89:20 
concrete 121 10:21 37:21 

Carolyn Erickson, CSR, CCT 
523-1186 

conditions 121 20:18 64:9 
confine I2J 12:4 47:1 
conform 111 &0:19 
conformance I2J 3:17 4:12 
confusion 111 38:18 
conscious 111 38:23 
conservation 111 48:6 
consider 111 48:15 
consideration PI &0:22.23,25 
considerations 111 66:15 
considered [7] 3:21 28:23 53:11 
60:10 61 :10014 87:16 

considering 111 25:23 
consistent 12J 48:13 46:17 
constitute 111 3:2 
construct 111 9:24 
constructed 111 9:13 
construction 121 7:19 42:7 
construed 111 87:12 
contain I2J 11 :1 12:20 
contained 141 4:20 41 :12,17 44:7 
contaminated 111 66:1 
contaminates 111 43:16 
contamination I2J 82:15 66:4 
contention 111 11:2 
contents 111 24:5 
continue 111 3:12 
contours 111 39:16 
contrast 111 31:18 
control 111 52:22 
controlled I2J 66:204 
convenience 111 43:11 
conversation 131 19:15 24:17 32: 
24 

conversations 121 19:23 33:17 
convinced 111 60:9 
copied 111 38:21 
copies 191 32:22 34:11013017,19,25 
35:16020 68:11 

coppell 11114:1 
copy 181 9:1 2 33:7 34:9019 35:2022 
&0:15 59:22 
comer 111 18:1 
correction 121 1:15 &0:1 
correctly 121 82:13 53:3 
coiT88ponding I2J 4:23 8:8 
cost 111 81:20 
costa 111 46:8 
council 191 31:15 46:6 48:23 55:3, 
4,4 83:1 016,21 

counsel's l11 31:20 
county 121 40:9 60:19 
couple [7] 13:18 31 :16 48:209,11 
&0:2 55:4 

course 14148:2 51 :19 64:5 68:6 
court's 111 11:2 
COUtU 111 18:11 
covenants !31 20:18 30:304 
covered 12J H :9o10 
covers 111 30:19 
crafted 111 9:13 
create 111 62:21 
created 111 49:25 
crest 111 64:7 

basically - crest 



criteria l5J 5:21 8:24 18:20 31:8 
80:9 

cross 111 40:18 
crowd 111 17:15 
culinary 14141:5,12,13,16 
cultural 1121 8:13,22 7:8,15,16,21, 
24 8:1 ,17,21 20:2,5 

curb 111 23:19 
currently 111 48:20 
cut l11 3t:1 9 
cutting 111 39:17 

D 
d4 111 8:16 
dan 141 53:2,5,24 55:25 
darker 111 18:7 
days 121 3:19 34:13 
de-emphasis 111 37:1 2 
deal (2) 20:19 47:22 
dearl1llt:19 
death 111 28:18 
decent 111 60:16 
decision 1411:18 2:25 80:4 64:16 
dedicated 111 5:5 
defense (2) 2:21,24 
defenses 111 2:21 
defer 111 12:5 
define 111 84:2 
defined 111 55:25 
defln" 111 18:6 
definitely 151 21:13 41:17 83:1 5, 
21 ,22 

definition 131 82:8,20 87:16 
degradation 111 51 :22 
delineates 111 49:20 
delineation 111 1:19 
delineations 111 35:22 
delivered 111 30:20 
demand 111 41:25 
demonstrate 111 59:3 
demonstrates 111 11:11 
denied 121 58:18,23 
deny (11 87:2 
depth (2) 10:2 11:9 
derived 111 38:21 
describes (2) 13:5 84:20 
d"crlptlon (2) 12:20,25 
descriptive 111 13:21 
design 1241 5:1.11.21 8:3.11 8:20 
14:24 20:13,13 22:20,21 23:10,10 
37:1 44:10 80:9 51:-4,6,7,21 52:5 
51:2,4 59:11 

designed [2) 5:15 80:8 
designs 131 9:19 18:21 38:22 
despite 111 47:2 
destruction 111 53:21 
detail 151 12:6 31:14 44:14 51:7,9 
detailed 141 18:13 47:20 49:3 51:5 
details 131 12:161 5:17 47:24 
detention 111 84:12 
determine !11 3t:10 
determined 121 27:8 45:2 
develop (2) 20:11 54:18 
developed (2) 30:6 52:23 

Sheet3 

Moab City Board of Adjustments August 28, 2008 
developer [7iJ 4:1,5 12:7 14:11 18: 
1017:5,6,12,16,2118:5,14,17,24 
1t:3,6,16,21 20:4,15,25 21:6,12, 
15,22 22:8,12,21 23:1 ,3,6,18,23 
24:1,3,7,9,23 28:7,21 28:3,6,24 21: 
6,16 30:6 31:12,18 32:16,18,22 33: 
6 34:7 38:8,17,25 37:14,19 38:6, 
16 39:3,7,13,23 40:3,14 42:17 43: 
9,13 45:22,24 41:3 47:24 41:2,14 
51:15,16 51:21 51:13 

developers 111 18:18 
developing 121 20:7,8 
development 1321 1:19,22 4:2 8:6 
13:21 20:9 22:18 25:23 27:16,19 
28:12 21:17 32:13 37:13 42:24 43: 
1 44:7 41:4,22 49:12 52:2,4,8,12, 
14 55:9 57:24 81 :9,19 83:25 85:25 
M :1 

developments l&l 38:14 80:9 54: 
4,9 88:6 81 :21 

devoted 111 27:3 
dialogue 111 23:10 
dictate 111 88:19 
difference 111 47:10 
different (81 17:18 21:23 25:15,16 
21:22 83:13 

difficult 141 18:23 41:16,16,19 
direct 141 13:6,10 31:6 42:10 
directed 111 40:10 
dirt (11 37:18 
disappearing 111 34:10 
disapproval 111 3:16 
disburse 111 34:25 
discharges 111 88:1 
discovered 111 24:11 
discrepancy 111 41:1 8 
discretion 111 18:2 
discuss 111 60:2 
discussed 1101 29:14 30:5 31 :14 
39:9 40:6 53:13 54:25 55:3,4 60: 
24 

discussion 131 21 :18 60:3 87:11 
dispute 121 30:20 49:9 
distinct 121 21 :23 37:2 
distinction 111 22:3 
district (11 80:19 
docs !11 22:9 
document 113J 5:2 8:10,16 t :3,4 
10:16 21 :2,12 32:18 33:24 38:16 
41:10 4t:25 

documented !11 83:9 
documents [2GJ 3:25 4:4 1:25 10: 
5,13,1712:15 14:4,1217:17 18:20 
20:20 25:25 26:8 30:9,9 35:12,25 
38:16 41:23,25 47:23 41:7 49:19 
60:12 51 :12 54:24 53:4 14:8 

door 111 37:8 
down 1121 15:2 26:23 27:11 28:1 2 
30:7 35:12 38:18,19 40:19,19 53:6 
84:15 

downward 111 40:10 
draft 14121:18 33:14 51 :18,22 
drain ltl 44:21 
drainage 111 5:23 

drainages 111 5:17 
drawer 111 34:9 
drawing 14118:6 19:12,14 28:14 
drawings (131 17:17,22,23,24.25 
18:1,2519:3,7,9 28:12,22 33:10 

drink 11155:14 
drinking (2) 80:1 8 51:1 
drive 11145:9 
driveway 111 22:16 
driveways 111 43:17 
drop 111 45:21 
dropped 111 14:15 
due 121 26:2 64:3 
dues 111 80:5 
dunes 111 38:21 
dwelling 111 38:13 
dwellings 111 80:7 

E 
each !18J 18:11 18:15 21:4 22:14 
23:2 27:6 21:23,24 30:7 33:25 34: 
23 40:19 48:11 58:17 83:6 64:2 

early 121 51 :9 84:10 
easier 111 15:7 
easily [2) 47:12 65:1 
easy 111 47:22 
educate 111 51:11 
effect 111 21:1 8 
effective 111 81 :20 
efficient 111 40:11 
effort 111 20:23 
eight 131 3:18 4:11 80:18 
either 1512:22 7:16 10:17 81 :1 88: 
24 

elected 111 57:3 
element 111 18:14 
employee/work 111 38:12 
encouraging (11 15:10 
end !31 40:21 43:11 48:12 
engineering 1"1 17:22 18:25 28: 
13 51:6 

enough 121 85:11 ,12 
entered 111 4:2 
entire 141 47:6 57:6,8 85:25 
entitles l21 60:18,25 
entitled 151 8:6 50:16 80:7 81 :10 
82:12 

entity 131 81 :5 82:8,10 
environment 121 13:8 20:24 
environmental 111 28:14 
err 111 47:16 
erroneous l4147:11 ,11 ,14 14:16 
error 111 47:11 
especially (41 15:2 24:11 ,15 30:13 
essentially 111 49:7 
establishes 111 5:15 
etc 131 3:21 30:17 32:14 
even 1141 8:15 7:5,22 8:8,12 9:22 
23:15 21:2 34:1 40:9 49:4 51 :11 
53:17 85:8 

everybody 131 31 :25 43:16 45:9 
everyone 1411:7 82:3,14 89:17 
everyone's (2) 82:2 89:17 
everything 181 14:19 21:12 28:10, 

Carolyn Erickson, CSR, CCT 
523-1186 

13 27:14 34:13 38:25 47:13 
evidence 1411 1:10 83:3 84:7,9 
evidentl11 38:16 
exactly !5J 8:2418:23 37:20 44:19 
83:20 

examination 1113:15 
example 161 3:13 4:21 31 :25 32:12 
37:6 54:11 

examples 121 11:5,18 
excavation (2) 15:11 38:25 
exceed 12188:16 89:10 
exceeded 111 48:12 
except£11 45:15 
excess 111 8:7 
excuse (2) 12:24 60:12 
exemplary 121 32:7,8 
exhibit ~ 3:2513:20 14:23 15:5 
18:14 28:8 35:1 6 48:7 80:14 

exhibit 1 111 3:25 
exhibit a 141 13:20 14:23 15:5 35: 
16 

exhibits 131 3:23 17:22 50:13 
exist 121 8:3 52:12 
existing (2) 15:10 40:9 
expects 111 27:1 
expenses l1114:21 
experience 111 56:5 
explain (2) 7:23 18:20 
explained 111 4:6 
expressed 111 8:5 
expressly 111 51:18 
extent 141 2:18 12:22 13:2 48:17 
extrapolated !11 49:9 
eyes 111 38:23 

F 
face 121 37:6,9 
faces 111 23:11 
facilities 121 13:9 84:12 
facility m 43:21 41:4 49:5 88:10, 
15 89:8,10 

fact 1111 3:7,11 10:13 13:3 20:6 27: 
5 42:2 47:2 51 :9,17 53:2 

failed (2) 48:3 49:17 
falls 111 12:5 
faint 111 19:19 
faintly 111 19:25 
fair 11188:1 
fairly (2) 21:7 50:2 
fallen 111 54:4 
families £11 38:13 
family 111 38:14 
far !131 8:15 27:24 31 :10 43:10 44: 
22 45:13 51:2 60:5 83:4 84:5 85:4, 
5 88:25 

favor l11 89:14 
fear 111 51:1 
feature (2) 8:22 20:2 
features i17J 5:16,18,23 8:2,8,13, 
19 7:8,15 8:15,16,17,18 20:14 21: 
20 28:1 1 51 :7 

february (2) 59:22 14:10 
federal (2) 7:18 8:4 
fee 111 87:19 

criteria-fee 



Moab City Board of Adjustments August 28, 2008 
feeding 111 55:18 gentlemen 111 25:11 herbic ides 111 54:22 
feel (7J 10:20 15:17,22 37:1 63:5 genuine 111 33:1 high 111 67:7 
1-4:8,12 geologic 111 23:21 higher 111 47:15 

feeling 111 18:24 geological 151 8:6,11 23:24 24:1 ,2 hills ide 111 8:6 
feelings 111 25:3 gets 12l 34:6 62:14 hinting 111 88:6 
fees 131 6-4:23,24 67:21 getting 131 10:21 12:13 65:20 his toric 1•1 8:13,22 7:15 20:5 
feet !17J 37:4,5,9 42:22 48:18,19,20, given 161 3:7 19:13 48:25 88:15 57: historical 131 7:8 8:3 20:2 
2446:1,3,6 82:16 64:15,17 67:7 16 88:10 hoa l11 87:21 
88:17 89:10 gives !31 12:25 28:25 46:17 hoas 111 87:18 

fenced (3] 83:3,6,7 giving 121 11 :18 38:9 homeowner 111 1-4:24 
fertilizers 111 54:22 glad 111 42:11 homeowners 121 54:19 64:25 
few 111 88:23 gladly 111 33:3 homes 121 9:21 38:13 
figure l2l 28:5 37:19 glare 111 29:2 hopefully 111 38:20 
file !81 3:14 30:13 34:9 35:1 59:8 glasses 111 15:2 hoping 111 87:16 
88:7 golf !21 84:5 66:6 hoteii5J37:15,16 43:1,1 ,1 

flied 1113:18 goods 111 39:21 house (8] 21 :24 22:14 23:11 ,12 2t: 
filtered !11 84:16 grading 1101 18:11 19:11 38:25 39: 2,3 63:7 88:13 
filtering 111 84:12 7,13,14,15,15,18 41 :4 household 111 84:22 
flnaii18J 20:17 28:11 2t:17 ,23 32: gramma 151 3:24 4:8 9:1 14:5 15:6 houses 121 23:13 39:17 
13 33:21 37:24 48:15,16,20 81 :4,4, grease 111 44:12 housing 121 38:11 ,12 
17,19 52:24 84:24 88:7 65:1 great 131 2:5 12:6 47:22 how's 111 28:4 

find 1101 7:4,16 8:2,25 12:2 13:19 green 111 20:12 however 111 31 :4 
17:2 21:7 24:9 41 :5 ground 111 80:10 hydrocarbons l11 84:14 

first 1111 11:8 23:1 24:13 25:6 27: grouped 111 4:23 1 
14 31 :20,21 ,23 48:2 49:14 84:2 grouping 111 10:6 

fitzgerald 121 15:22 33:2 groups 111 38:17 
five 131 34:8 56:20 88:5 guestl11 22:17 
fixable 111 47:12 guests (11 39:22 
fixed 111 85:1 guidelines 1211 6:2,5,10,11 ,11 ,19, 
flat 111 38:19 20.20 6:4,11 8:8 9:16 12:23 13:22 
flats 111 31 :10 14:17,25 20:13 29:1 37:1 40:3 89: 
floating 111 26:17 11 
ftoodwllys l2l 8:5 23:21 ----~H~----

fo 111 48:7 
focused 111 42:2 
follow 111 16:23 
following 111 39:16 
food 111 24:16 
foot 121 13:5 42:7 
footage l2l 27:3 33:25 
forcing 111 38:13 
forever 111 20:12 
fonn 111 37:10 
fonnaUons 111 24:13 
fonns 111 38:17 
forth 121 16:15 12:11 
found l2l 15:6 41 :7 
four 151 29:15 52:10 11:20 8-4:15, 
17 

free (11 51:14 
front (7J 13:4 17:24 23:5,11 ,12 31: 
25 42:9 

further 111 51 :25 
future 111 38:20 

G 
gain 111 87:18 
garage 181 13:5 22:15 23:8 37:5,6, 
6,8 44:11 
garages 121 23:14 38:2 
gave (3] 35:16 10:22,22 
generalizations 111 49:7 
generally 111 49:9 
generating 111 52:19 

habit 111 41:20 
half 121 1:20 3:4 
handed !11 30:16 
handful 111 82:20 
handling 121 54:21 11:15 
hang !11 33:8 
happen (11 11 :21 
happened 111 17:5 
happens !11 11 :19 
happy l2l 21:24,24 
hard !31 10:2415:1 89:18 
hate 111 82:21 
hazard 12l 8:6 24:25 
hazardous l2l 54:22 11:19 
hazards !318:11 23:21,24 
head (141 4:2 49:17,18,21,21 10:4, 
7,8,23,24 82:8,9 83:6 88:4 
hear 141 11 :12 17:5 25:12 47:24 
heard 15J 1:20 12:8 16:8,19 6-4:7 
hearings !11 18:15 
heart !11 19:19 
heatl11 24: 1 o 
heavier !11 44:5 
heavily !11 88:3 
heavy 121 52:18,18 
height 1101 48:12.14,15,17.18,20 
1-4:13 87:4 88:16 89:9 
heightened 111 80:8 
help 111 38:22 
helpful !31 18:24 88:4 59:5 

idea !31 17:10 37:14 43:13 
Idea s 111 62:20 
Identical 111 4:9 
Identified 131 24:25 30:7 33:21 
Ide ntify 141 32:13,15,15 33:20 
Ignore 111 41:10 
Imagine 111 18:18 
impac t (7J 20:24 22:18,25 28:9 31 : 
10 82:2 88:13 

Impa cted 111 82:1 
Impacting 111 10:10 
Implement (3] 52:15 54:1 ,2 
Implemented 141 52:5,21,23 116:6 
Important 121 10:11,24 
Impose 111 80:9 
Improvement 111 29:24 
Improvements 121 30:1 49:1 
Inch 111 10:18 
inc identally 111 52:9 
Inc lude 1318:17 31:2 41 :4 
Included 151 2:2 5:18 31 :13 33:11 
63:7 

Includes 121 9:7 80:9 
Including 131 5:16,23 38:13 
Incredible 111 68:8 
Indeed 111 8:9 
independently 111 9:13 
Index !31 5:3 6:4 9:6 
Indicate 111 83:25 
Indicated 131 14:8 17:8 30:3 
Indicates 111 24:21 
Indication 111 7:21 
lndlv lduai 13J 5:25 22:7 44:23 
Industry 111 52:18 
lnfonnatlon (91 10:22 11:1 15:15 
25:12 41 :10 42:13 18:5,9 116:18 

lnfonnatlonal 111 54:19 
lnfonned l2l 48:25 49:11 
Infrastructure 141 12:21 13:2 2t: 

Carolyn Erickson, CS~ ccr 
523-1186 

Sheet4 

22 38:1 
initial !11 28:2 
Input 111 65:15 
Inquired (1157:2 
Inquiry 111 11:1 
Insofar !11 44:21 
lnstaii i1J 49:2 
Instance !11 21:25 
Instructions 111 4:21 
Integrated !11 8:19 
Intended 111 27:4 
Intending 111 43:7 
Intensive 111 10:5 
Intent 121 44:15 65:2 
intention 111 14:8 
Interest !31 9:16 10:1 15:19 
Interests !11 19:22 
Interject 11143:25 
Internal !51 13:24 14:5 15:4 19:20 
25:18 

Interpretation 111 9:24 
Interrupt 1116:18 
Interruptions 111 68:18 
Intersection 111 40:18 
Inventory 121 5:18 8:18 
involved 121 23:24 47:23 
Irrigation 111 22:5 
Issue [20) 2:1 18:1,4,9 17:19 27:1 
44:14,21 46:16,23 47:19,22 48:14 
49:16 52:10 83:18 59:2 81 :2,6 85: 
4 
Issues 1111 1:21 22:12 25:7 21:4 
27:6 41:13 47:2 80:25 52:7 65:1 4 
69:18 

item 141 13:16 15:3,9 31 :17 
Items 141 4:19 9:7 30:8 55:6 
ltself 131 11 :13 20:13 31:11 

J 
january (11 32:19 
jeeps 111 42:20 
jeff 141 40:6 44:13 57:19 88:3 
job (2] 32:10 31:10 
jog 111 37:5 
judgment 121 48:25 49:11 
jump (2] 44:13 46:11 

K 
keep (7J 15:17 17:1 27:11 32:25 34: 
9 35:1 88:19 

keeping 111 20:13 
keeps 111 21:1 
key IBJ 13:23,24 14:1,8,25 25:18 
84:24 88:6 

keypad 12l &8:15,19 

L 
labeled 111 33:12 
lack 111 55:12 
laid 121 10:16 21 :19 
land 111 31:2 
landfill 111 55:19 
landscape !31 5:17,19 36:19 
landscaping 111 21 :22 

feeding - landscaping 



landslides !11 8:11 
lanes !11 28:10 
language !61 6:6 22:25 33:20 51 : 
18,23 68:1 

large 131 21:8 38:9,10 
larger 121 13:19 15:7 
last J15J 1:20 2:11 3:22,23 4:6 27: 
15 30:11 58:4,1460:4,24 81 :1 83: 
24 58:10,19 

later [2) 14:9 51 :2 
law 181 2:20 8:4 10:19 11:1 32:11 
41:14 57:5 13:6 

lawn [2) 22:1 55:13 
laws 121 7:18,20 
lead 111 28:11 
learned 111 66:19 
learning !11 28:3 
least [3) 3:18 63:1168:5 
leds l11 40:15 
left 131 2:11 15:4 82:24 
lefthand 111 11:1 
legend 141 27:2,2,4 4&:12 
legislature 111 62:24 
lengthy 111 29:7 
less 11140:11 
letter (7) 13:3,4 24:20 25:3,5 42:8 
61:18 
level l11l 30:8 45:1 47:14 ,17 51 :9, 
10 55:1 63:6,11 '16,21 

life 111 24:11 
light 141 29:3 40:12,19,19 
lighting 1131 18:14 28:19,20,20,23, 
25 40:1,2,4 ,6,14,17,17 
lights 141 28:20 29:1,2 40:20 
limited 111 18:10 
line (9) 11:20 28:18 21:21 41:14 49: 
13,20 14:11,11 88:18 

lines 141 21:17 29:20 35:21 55:11 
llon's !&l 1:19 4 :1 33:13 38:21 83: 
14,16,22,25 

list 141 27:11 33:10 15:17 62:13 
listed !51 8:24 10:8 14:20 25:1 o 60: 
18 

listen 111 56:22 
listening 111 21:8 
lists (11 21 :8 
little 11111 1:4 1:9 18:3 21 :17,25 22: 
10 23:19,20 24:10 30:15 37:13 38: 
24 31:15,19 40:5,12 43:2 11:24 81: 
4 

living !11 43:8 
local 111 1:23 
locate 111 13:22 
located 121 26:4 51:17 
location !41 32:14 33:21 38:2 55: 
24 

lodge !11 50:5 
lodging !11 38:14 
long 181 3:5 9:4 37:4 45:13 52:14 
89:17 

look 12111:7 4:20 &:1,19 1:6 12:22 
14:2,25 11:4 20:9 2S:14 33:15 34: 
11 ,15 31:3,14,14 47:8 50:3 51:10 
87:18 

Sheet5 

Moab City Board of Adj ustments August 28, 2008 
looked !111 4:9,10 44:14 63:12.23 member 121 2S:5 34:23 
67:15 members !101 25:15 34:22 55:4,5 

looking ~~ 8:14 13:12 33:18 37:20, 66:11 88:1,2,21 69:5,9 
23 51 :18 58:2 60:4 63:17 memo111ndum 121 1:25 2:2 
looks 131 13:25 37:21 46:16 m e morialized 111 22:8 
loop 111 43:12 m e morializing !11 29:21 
losing 111 60:20 memories !11 58:24 
loss 111 14:22 m e ntion (e) 8:7,21,22 13:115:11 
lot !191 12:10 13:25 15:14,20 20:11 64:20 
2S:3 33:25 38:9,13 39:18 44:9 47: mentioned 1101 7:5 10:5 11:20 15: 
3 48:10 58:13 13:3,12,12 14:7 65: 15 25:10,20,21 38:1 56:21 65:18 
5 m e ntioning !11 35:24 

lots (101 5:25 32:14 33:12,12,13,14, met [2) 12:9 64:4 
21 38:8,9 44:23 mlc hael l11 13:4 

low 121 40:10,19 might 141 25:15 40:18 56:3 82:7 
lower !11 15:1 mlllc ntek 111 38:18 

M mind 131 17:15 33:16 44:1 
m inimal 121 15:10 24:16 

machinery 111 45:6 minimize (7) 8:1,7 20:23 22:13 38: 
madam (131 2:10 3:23 11:4 13:14 2 53:20 85: 13 
14:23 15:25 27:12 30:23 31:16 33: minim ized [3) 12:22 13:3 22:17 
18 35:23 40:24 41 :8 minimizing !11 22:25 

mall 131 60:9 61:3,18 mino r 121 60:3 65:1 
mailed 121 82:12,13 minute 111 11 :7 
main 111 65:19 minutes 121 1:6,8 
mainly 111 60:6 misnomer 111 2S:9 
maintain 121 42:24,25 missing 121 17:2 20:9 
maintained !11 2:15 mistake !11 46:14 
maintaining !11 6:25 m itig ate [3) 8:2,7 63:18 
maintenance 1111 42:8,23 43:1,3, m itigatio n !11 51:21 
3,5,6,14 45:15 14:13 67:21 mix 111 37:21 

manual !11 54:18 m ixed 12138:11 38:16 
map 1111 13:20,21,24,25 14:2,3,3 moab PI 1:1 4:3 50:20 
15:6,8 25:16 49:19 money !11 43:11 

mapped 111 22:24 monkey 111 44:12 
maps 111 13:19 monthly 111 38:12 
mass" 131 38:17 37:2,1 o m o nths 111 51 :24 
master 1811:19,22 27:15,18 36:9, moot 111 81 :3 
11 mos t 181 13:21 42:23 53:10,11 65: 

material 121 55:16 57:13 6,6 
materials 111 50:19 m otion 181 2:22 66:15,16,20 67:2 
matter 131 3:1 9:24 27:5 68:13 69:12,16 
maximum 131 46:12,16,18 moto rcyc les !11 43:17 
mea nanny 181 31 :3 40:8 44:3 48: move !61 1:21 16:1 30:25 31:2 38: 
16 47:25 48:2 60:1 53:2 6 47:19 

mcannany 111 41 :2 moving 111 7:19 
mean 1121 8:18 11:12 21:6 2t:10 m owers 121 42:24,25 
29:14 43:9 48:9 52:10 58:25 57: mpd !41 8:20 28:1 29:7 57:7 
21 14:8 87:11 muc h !81 10:23 14:20 15:7,7,21 27: 

meaning [3) 60:11 61 :15,25 3 37:3 47:15 
m eans 151 5:8 8:20 48:16 50:18 14: multi i1J 38:13 
20 mus t 121 7:20 12:20 
measured 111 48:24 

N measures 181 51:21 52:5,15,16,21 
55:8,15 58:20 nad 111 17:7 
mechanism 111 21:1 name 121 9:3 66:25 
meet [9] 12:516:16 31 :1 46:14 48: names 12119:13,13 
21 41:14 53:10,12 55:5 narrative 11111 2:13 4:21 8:13,24 10: 

meeting !131 1:5,16 3:1911:4 30:5 8,12 11:13,15 15:16 27:18,22 30: 
31:15 39:9 63:14 55:5 58:15,25 23 31:25 32:4,5 41 :18,21 47:20 48: 
13:6 81:2 1 
meetings !51 41 :24 58:22 17:15 narrow !11 22:14 
81:21 88:19 natu111l 1121 5:16,16,23,23 8:2,2,8 
meets 131 5:12 14:5,6 8:17 20:14 21:20 23:19 37:20 

Carolyn Enckson, CSR, CCT 
523-11 86 

natu111llzed 121 18:7,13 
near 131 4:2 8:9 69:18 
nearby 111 38:15 
necessarily 111 58:25 
need 1131 1:6 4:19 8:22 39:8 42:4 
46:9 47:19 58:15,18 14:14 87:10 
58:19,20 

needs (e) 2 :7 20:21 2t:11 58:13 
62:24 14:14 

negotiating !1151:14 
neighboring 111 62:22 
neither !11 4:10 
never !5133:16 48:12 56:24 57:21 
66:25 

next 1121 1:16 13:25 14:1 18:21 25: 
18 28:22 29:16,19 30:2 34:15 47: 
17 63:10 

nice 131 41 :10 57:7,21 
night 141 40:2 57:7 58:4.14 
nlg111 111 7:20 
non-motorized !11 13:18 
none 1819:5 41:21 55:16,20 81 :1,3 
nor 12132:15 &2:20 
normally 111 33:5 
note !11 25:14 
noted 121 2:12 41:15 
notes 111 50:17 
nothing 1101 5:6,9,12,20 8:4,14 1: 
10,15 14:2 81:12 

notice 1211 4:15 12:2 11:19 21:10 
31:22 57:16 60:5,8,9,13,14 81 :3, 
10 62:3,12,13,14 63:4,5,6,8 

notices 121 63:18,24 
notffled 111 60:20 
notify 111 60:8 
noting 121 30:8 55:23 
november 141 30:11 51:25 64:10, 
10 

number 15J 17:17 25:20 27:15 52: 
21 82:19 

nutshell 111 40:13 

0 
objected 11121:11 
objection 111 60:16 
objectionable 111 12:3 
objections 111 2:21 
objectives 121 27:16 28:4 
obvious !11 50:2 
obviously !11 6:16 
occur 121 40:20 52:20 
occurs 111 51:22 
offer (11 50:12 
offset 13137:7,9 45:8 
oil !11 43:15 
omission !11 1:10 
once 121 22:4 60:2 
on" 131 10:8 19:7,9 
open 1381 4:24 5:5,9,9,11 8:19,23 9: 
2,618:15 17:9,14 18:4,5,5,6,13,14 
20:10,16,19 21:1 ,1,2,4,-4 ,8 22:2,2, 
3,6 25:11 28:7 30:16 42:15 57:9, 
21 11:12 

opens 111 22:5 



operated 151 43:10 64:20,22 88:15, 
16 

operations 111 55:18 
opinion 111 25:12 
opportunity 11127:14 
option 111 82:7 
order PI 1:5 42:22 46:23 
ordinance [7) 8:6 21:5 50:8 51:2, 
25 52:2,11 

ordinances 111 1:23 
ordinarily 111 51 :9 
organization 111 81:5 
organizations 121 80:19,25 
original 111 19:3 
others 111 55:9 
ought 111 46:11 
ourselves 111 58:16 
outside 121 24:25 50:6 
overall 121 21:17 30:1 
overnight 121 38:11 39:22 
own 12122:15 42:21 
owned 111 30:20 
owners 14144:9,23 55:14 89:4 

p 
packet 111 54:19 
pad 11188:6 
pages 121 2:12 31 :24 
paintings 111 8:3 
pamphlet 111 55:13 
pan 111 42:21 
paragraphs 11147:6 
parcels 121 32:14 33:22 
park 11122:16 
parking 181 6:1 ,6 12:21 ,25 22:10, 
12,15 38:1 

part 1101 2:11 3:2 20:8,17 28:13 29: 
16 49:3 54:9 58:7 64:23 

particular 151 2:1 11 :24 18:4 27:18 
31 :17 

parties [3) 80:24 81:1,24 
parts (1120:15 
party [7) 2:21 80:7.10,12 81 :11,14, 
25 
pass 111 3:22 
passed 111 69:16 
passes 121 18:8,9 
path 11137:15 
patron 111 42:7 
patrons 12142:15,17 
paving 11137:20 
pay 12140:1 47:9 
peak 111 48:24 
pedestrian 14113:18 14:7 28:10, 
10 

people 1131 19:8 20:11 ,13 34:11 
35:7,11 38:9 39:25 40:18 42:20 
88:5,11 81 :8 

per 121 20:17 63:14 
perceive [3) 43:23 47:10 64:16 
percent 181 8:7 18:12,13,13 48:12, 
23 

percentliges 131 18:17 21 :7 28:8 
perttaps 121 47:16 54:15 

SheetS 

Moab City Board of Adj ustments August 28, 2008 
permit 111 52:18 
person 11121:16 
persona 111 48:20 
pesticides 111 54:21 
petroglyph& (11 8:2 
phase 111 34:1 
phases 131 29:15,23,24 
phasing [5] 29:13.20,22,25 30:1 4 
philosophy 111 23:6 
photocopy 11135:5 
picture [2) 33:19,20 
pictures 111 9:21 
piggy (11 29:25 
place (61 18:25 18:9 21 :15 40:20 
85:11 ,13 
placed 11133:5 
places 121 17:18 80:15 
plan £7111:19,22 5:15 8:12 8:16,17, 
21 ,23 9:2,7,8,10,11 ,12,14,15.21 
18:15 20:1 ,17 21 :19.22 22:23 23: 
22 24:24 21:17,19 27:16,19 28:10. 
21,23,23,24,25 29:13,17,20,25 30: 
11 ,14,16 32:13 33:11 38:9.14 37: 
24 39:7,11 ,13,14,15 40:1 ,4,4,7,13, 
16 41 :3,4,5 43:22 48:6 49:3 52:20 
54:3,3 55:21 58:7 59:8,25 

planned [3) 33:12,13 38:11 
planning (131 3:16,19 31 :14 33:6 
34:7,22,23 46:6 47:15 49:23 55:1, 
3 88:23 

plans 1~1 9:1 ,5 17:23 29:9 35:25, 
25 38:1 38:25 53:25 
plant 111 50:17 
planted 111 22:-4 
planting l2l 22:2,6 
plat 1 .. 1 2:16 3:17,20 -4:11 ,19 5:3 8: 
1-4 7:5.16 8:8 9:6,7,10,12 10:2512: 
20 13:11,19,20 14:415:12,18,23, 
23 20:22 25:10,19,22,25 28:9,10, 
11 29:1 -4 30:25 38:2 41:12 42:9 
48:15,16 51 :4 52:2-4 64:5 85:1 ,3 

plats 131 4:16 29:23 46:14 
please 111 32:17 
plenty !1117:25 
plus l21 24:14 21:22 
pnz l2l 63:11 ,17 
point 1121 10:2-411 :15 18:12,12 41 : 
3 -42:1 48:23 48:19 80:1 52:1 58:2 
81 :3 
points 13111:16 18:12 48:11 
policy 111 58:25 
pollutant 11152:19 
pollution (1155:24 
population 111 46:21 
portion l2l 50:3 85:3 
portions 1218:9 43:4 
pose 111 58:3 
position 11187:12 
possibility 111 8:11 
possible 111 38:25 
possibly 111 9:13 
posted 111 83:24 
posting l21 80:14 82:4 
potential 131 8:10 50:10 58:3 

practical 131 12:22 13:2 61:18 
pre-annexation l2J 58:7 88:10 
pre-applicant 11130:25 
preferable 111 12:12 
prehistoric 1118:3 
preliminary 1321 1:19 2:16 3:17 -4: 
11 ,19 5:1,5,11 6:3,10.14 9:4 14:24 
15:23 26:9 30:25 32:13 33:11 ,13 
38:2 39:6 41:3,12 42:9 48:14 50: 
16 51 :3,8 59:8 83:19 64:5 85:2 

prepare 1414:17 -41 :16,17,19 
prepared 131 3:17 4:11 59:2 
present 1419:19 27:14 38:22 81 :1 
presentation 131 2:1 1 32:8 41 :10 
presented m 2:22 17:2-4 18:16 27: 
23 41 :13 57:8 83:4 

preservation 12115:10 55:8 
preserve 131 7:15 28:7 52:6 
preserved 11120:20 
preserves l21 8:13 20:2 
preserving 111 21 :1 
pretty r5J 10:23,24 14:20 38:15 62: 
12 

prevent 111 52:15 
prevents 11143:15 
previously l2l 1:12 11:2 
primarily 1'41 7:-4 10:15 39:21 64:5 
prlntr1l 21:15 
printed 111 21:16 
prints 1313:17,18 4:11 
prior 141 3:19 46:17,18 55:5 
pristine 111 28:16 
private 131 38:13 64:23 88:10 
problem m 25:2-4 48:21 ,22 46:8 
41:8,10,12 
procedure 111 3:5 
procedures 111 2:17 
proceedings 111 3:4 
process l13J4:15 28:2 27:10 29:6, 
7,17 48:8 49:18 51 :3,14 57:6 80:5 
64:3 
processes 111 54:8 
produce 111 28:9 
profit 12143:7 67:18 
prohibit PI 44:6 52:2,16 
prohibited 151 44:17 52:8 55:17, 
18,20 

prohibition l21 43:19,24 
prohibits 141 13:7,9 44:4 55:24 
project 1101 7:20 17:13 32:7 48:16 
49:1,9 50:4 54:24 55:9 57:8 
promote 111 37:1 
promotion 111 36:8 
proof 111 3:10 
proper 121 54:21 55:15 
property 151 24:15 44:23,24 51 :9 
89:4 
proponent t•l 4:1 41 :11 42:6,9 
proponenfs 111 32:7 
proponents 121 25:20 32:9 
propose 1111:13 
proposed 181 28:12 32:14 33:21 
45:2 58:16,21 

prospective 111 44:3 

Carolyn Erickson, CSR, CCT 
523-1186 

protect l2l 7:21 28:14 
protected l21 8:19 20:19 
protecting 11144:21 
protection [20J 44:22 41:17,18,21 
50:4,7,8,19,23 51 :1,17 52:3,8,9 53: 
19,25 54:2,4,20 65:23 

protections 111 51:12 
protective 11152:5 
proud 11129:10 
provide !81 4:4 14:15 17:3 19:7 33: 
7 34:13 41 :20 49:17 

provided 1131 8:25 11 :13 14:3,4,20 
15:16 21:1 38:19 39:9 47:24 83:5, 
7,8 

providing 111 39:21 
provision 1131 2:1 3 5:4,13 8:5 7: 
12,18 13:12 14:6 15:3 17:9 27:18 
30:2 40:22 

provisions 1181 2:15 3:8,18 4:12 
10:4,12 11:12 25:21 48:16 48:4,9 
51 :15 80:6,14 64:4,6,6 85:12 

public 1241 4:14,15,17,2414:417: 
25 21:1 ,3,5,6 29:7 30:1,12 35:2 42: 
15 58:17,21 57:9,9 51:9 81 :21 83: 
18 64:9 88:11 

publication 14157:17 80:9,1-4 62:4 
published 111 57:10 
pueblo 121 38:19 37:1 
pueblos 111 37:3 
pull l1151 :20 
pulled (1148:23 
purpose 12142:16 44:9 
purposes !3J 27:1 9 28:1 43:24 
put 1191 1:14 3:24 10:12 18:24 20: 
12 21:10,17,20 27:5 38:7 40:15,15 
42:20 43:14 51 :18 57:1 ,16 55:13 
87:1 
puts (11 81 :24 
putting 11129:9 
pvc 111 50:18 

Q 
quality 131 13:8 51 :22 52:6 
question 1111 12:8 18:19 25:8 28: 
23 33:1,2,19 57:20,22,25 58:8 

questions !81 31:4 55:6 57:12,14 
58:1 ,13 83:21 85:18 

quote 141 2:19 8:7 48:9.22 
quoted 1114:13 

R 
raise l2l 81:5,12 
raised 151 25:7 27:7 46:24 47:2 49: 
16 

ranch l2l 53:7 88:13 
range 131 17:22,22.23 
raptor l2l 24:6,8 
raptora 131 24:11 ,12,14 
rate 111 29:6 
rather 131 7:12 36:18 44:10 
read m 11:1-415:1 ,7,15 25:6 43:20 
59:1 
ready 111 18:1 
real 121 10:21 24:1 6 

operated - real 



really J13J 15:16,19 38:8 39:8,18 
50:22 52:11,13 57:22 58:4 89:16, 
17,17 

reason 111 28:16 
reasoning 111 47:23 
reasons 111 28:15 
rebuttal 111 48:18 
recap 131 1:20 110:2,4 
recapping 111 58:23 
received 121 81 :2 85:8 
recently 111 63:24 
recitation 131 10:21 11:9 12:13 
recited 111 18:9 
recognize 111 43:19 
recollection [2J 110:6 81 :7 
recommend 111 89:8 
recommendation 141 47:17 84:14 
87:2,4 
recommendations 111 88:24 
record 1101 11 :10 12:10 18:13 19:2 
20:22 41:3,4 48:6,7 83:9 
records 131 3:11 4:7,10 
recoup 111 84:21 
rec,.ational 111 38:15 
recylclng 111 42:18 
reduce 111 21:8 
reduced 121 19:17,17 
refer 131 2:13 31 :23 50:13 
reference 111 7:1 
referTed 111 86:1 
referring [2) 10:11 49:20 
refers 111 4:18 
reflle 111 4:8 
refined 111 28:19 
reflect 111 12:10 
refrain 111 11:8 
refresh 111 58:23 
regard [2) 4:5 10:24 
regarding 111 33:12 
regular 111 110:13 
relate 111 22:2 
relates [2J 25:24 28:1 
relative 111 27:2 
relatively 111 50:3 
relevant 131 1:23 12:3 85:11 
reliable 111 88:9 
rely 111 48:8 
remain 111 34:19 
remaining 111 1:21 
remedied 121 47:17 87:5 
remember 141 9:3 37:4 51 :3 86:25 
removed 111 4:7 
render 111 57:22 
rendertngs 111 18:21 
rental 111 36:12 
repair 131 42:20 43:4 44:11 
reply 111 2:22 
report 141 30:20 31:13 48:17,23 
reports 131 24:1.2.2 
represents 111 19:10 
requHt J9J 3:24 4:8.9 9:1 14:5 18: 
6 34:13 35:3 89:8 
requl,. 141 7:7,19 25:2.2 58:12 
required !211 4:23,25 5:7,8,8,13,18 

Sheet7 

Moab City Board of Adjustments August 28, 2008 
8:2,4 10:19 11:1 22:14 29:8 34:18, 9 22:5 37:22 41 :19 86:14 61 :11 showing (5] 11:4,25 25:11 27:3 
19 47:8 53:6,25 64:17 82:4 63:5 82:3 29:19 

requirement 131 8:5 13:1 65:11 s and 151 31 :10 38:21 37:21,22 38: shown 121 29:20 88:1 
requireme nts (3] 50:20 114:17 84: 21 shows 181 18:14 19:14 29:21 30: 
7 sanitary 121 50:17,18 16 33:14 34:1 48:6 85:23 

requlres 15J 14:6 51:20,25 52:313: sar 11411:18 18:4 29:6 31:1 38:4,6. s ide m 11:24,24 23:9,10,13 29:3 
6 8 40:21 44:4 52:17 57:7 63:13,18 40:19 
research 111 47:21 84:7 sidewalks 131 23:8,15 28:12 
resident 111 81 :19 satisfy 11117:6 slgnage 131 28:23,24 40:4 
residential 161 43:22.23 45:17 52: saw 121 29:8 57:23 signed 111 20:21 
7 55:15 89:1 saying [8J 10:6,7,8,11 16:16 44:10 slgnfflcanti5J 5:17,24 8:14,16.17 
residents 141 46:4,10 51 :17 62:19 88:1.20 silly [2J 57:20,25 
residual 111 54:14 says 1171 2:20 3:14 5:5 11:17 15:3, similar 111 54:23 
resort (141 4:1 33:13 38:9 42:16,17 9 32:1,2 38:8 44:17 45:25 <M:3,19 s imple 111 10:13 
43:7 44:6 83:16,22 68:2,21 89:4,5, 50:17 81 :13 83:16 84:22 simply 161 3:3 10:4 14:9 18:9 43: 
9 s cale 131 28:8 38:9,10 2449:13 
resources 111 50:10 scaled [2J 19:9,10 since 141 12:1 30:11 54:5 58:15 
respect 131 2:1 7:140:6 s carcity 111 41:8 s ingle 111 37:8 
respond 141 18:3,6,11 27:12 s cenic 111 38:15 sit (3] 26:23 36:12 58:21 
respo nded 111 2:12 s c hool 111 110:19 site 1211 5:14.18 8:12 7:24,24 8:1,1, 
response l141 1:18 2:24 26:6,19 s c rutinized 111 52:4 4,18 15:11 17:23 20:4,6 24:24 28: 
27:25 31:2,20 32:6 35:24 41 :22 scrutiny 111 47:9 7,14 38:25 39:7 40:20 42:7 59:8 
42:4,6 47:25 59:4 se 111 63:14 s ites 1417:21 8:3,21,22 
responses 111 31:17 seco nd 151 2:5 4 :6 49:16 66:20 89: sitting 121 13:25 33:8 
rest 111 42:23 11 situated 111 8:1 
restate 111 41:9 s ection [23) 2:13,18 3:13 4:13,18 six 111 58:5 
restaurant (11 39:24 5:9,14 8:20 8:15 9:18 10:4 12:3, s ize 161 19:7,8 38:8,8, 12,13 
restricted (11 85:7 1913:6,14,17 17:8 20:6 32:12 38: sizes 111 28:25 
restriction 131 48:12,15 87:4 4 44:17 51:23 55:23 sketches l11 37:7 
restrictions (7) 20:18 30:3,4 45: sec tions 111 14:21 skip 131 9:17 11:5,7 
14 55:7 65:11,12 sedime ntation 111 8:12 slick 111 4:2 

result 121 8:12 9:1 s ee/ 111 39:4 slope 111 8:7 
retall l11 39:20 send 111 50:14 slopes l11 8:8 
retake 111 54:13 sensltive l21 5:16,22 small 131 24:14 38:10 53:5 
review 181 1:15 29:7,17 30:12 58: separate 1219:2 87:21 s omeone J91 33:7 43:25 58:18 57: 
14 51:9 sept ic [2J 65:19 85:20 1 58:3 81:13 82:7 87:2,3 

reviewed 1101 1:25 12:6 18:20 21 : s eries 111 28:22 sometime 111 84:10 
16 27:7 31 :6 49:22 50:15 51 :8 13: serve 121 48:20,22 sometimes 131 17:16,17 84:1 
4 s erved 161 48:5,17 49:1,6,13 somewhat 111 53:16 

reviewing 111 34:25 serves l11 44:9 somewhere 111 42:22 
rttlnehart 111 35:24 service 141 13:5,9 43:21 84:22 sorry 161 8:18 7:10 38:6 40:25 oM:4 
ridges 131 5:17,24 8:5 services 111 39:21 110:21 
rights 151 48:13 57:24 81:8 82:2,3 session 111 58:8 sort 181 1:12 25:24 44:5 49:4 ,9 62: 
rises 111 47:14 sHslons 111 18:16 22 
road 141 18:13 31 :10 38:21 54:14 set (6) 4 :2419:17 33:8 34:6,6 82: s orts 111 44:24 
roads (6) 22:13,13 23:7 28:9 39:14, 11 sounds [2) 43:22 68:5 
16,17,19 seta [2J 20:18 33:9 source 1111 43:10,11 44:22 50:19 

roadways 111 30:14 several 1412:14 4:19 54:6 57:6 51 :1,17 52:2 63:24 54:3 55:24 58: 
rock 1414 :3 54:7,1 1,18 sewer m 50:17 51 :6,6 64:18 55:11 , 4 
rocks 1'1 40:15 11 66:18 s ourcH 131 52:15 54:1,6 
rolled 111 23:18 shall 161 3:1 8,21 8:17 32:13 45:18, space (39) 4:24 6:5,9,10,12 8:19, 
roofs 111 38:20 19 23 9:2,6 16:15 17:8,9,14 18:4,4,5, 
rules 121 2:17 3:5 shares 111 81:13 5,7,13,15 20:10,16,19 21:1,2,2,4,5, 
run 111 55:11 sheets 111 41 :5 8 22:2,2,3,5,7 25:11 28:7 30:16 38: 
running 121 30:15 85:19 shepherd (411 2:4,9,10 3:7 6:10,20, 7 59:12 
runs 111 54:13 24 7:3,10,14,25 10:1 ,6,15,23 11:4, spacH 111 8:6 
rural 111 82:19 15 12:18 13:14,16 14:12,23 18:25 spacing 111 40:17 
rv'd 111 28:18 20:1 25:5,13 27:1 2,17,21 30:22 31: speaker i120J 1:9,11 6:9,17 11:19, 
rvs 111 42:20 16,19 32:5,23 33:18 34:17 35:23 23,25 14:10,13,14,18 18:5,22 18:2, 

s 
safeguards 111 85:12 
salient 111 48:11 
same i12J 4:6 5:14 9:7 13:16 15:8, 

40:23,24 41 :8 42:1 19,22 19:1,5,24 21:3 22:19 23:4, 
shop 131 39:23 42:8 84:13 16 24:18,19 25:2,9 31:9 32:20 33: 
show J7J 17:17,19 19:13 20:20,25 23 34:2,4,5, 12,14,21 ,24 35:4,6,8,9, 
26:16 58:24 11 ,14,15,19 38:5 37:17 39:5 44:2, 

showed 141 12:7 20:16 58:5,5 16,20,25 45:5,7 48:2,5,13 47:5 49: 

Carolyn Erickson, CSR. CCT 
523-1186 



24 53:9,15,22 64:2,10,22 56:20,23 
57:18 68:9,12,16,17,18,19,20,21 , 
25 59:10,13,16,19,21,24 50:17,22 
111 :16 112:6,9,15,18,25 53:2,10 14: 
19 65:17,22,24 68:2,4,5,8,9,12,14, 
17,21 ,.22 87:6,8,13,23 68:3,9,14, 
22,25 81:3,6,7,13 

speaks I2J 5:6 11:13 
special 131 40:1 47:9 61 :10 
specific 1121 3:8,10 5:21 9:17 11: 
16 12:16,18 15:17 31 :4 43:15 56:6 
68:23 

specifically 1121 5:22 1:23 10:11 
13:7,9 25:13,22 33:11 40:8 42:2 
45:10 56:19 

specifics 141 12:4 14:21 15:24 31: 
6 

spelled I2J 113: 15,2.2 
spent 111 29:9 
spillage 111 43:15 
splitting 111 3:4 
spring I2J 53:5 111:14 
springs 121 41:21 50:24 
square 151 13:5 27:3 33:25 42:7,22 
stack 111 41:6 
staff 1211 12:5 18:11,19 11:15 27:7, 
7 31:6 33:19 31:10 44:13 45:1 48: 
8,15 41:11,23,25 50:16,21,25 58: 
10 57:19 

staff's I2J 44:3 48:25 
stage 151 29:1 9 33:24 51 :4 52:24 
56:7 

s tages 111 51 :2 
· stamped 111 59:22 
stand 121 2:23 25:14 
standard 151 12:9 16:16 47:15 55: 
12 80:13 

standards I11!J 9:17,18 18:23 31 :1 
48:21 50:9 51 :1,17,21 52:5,16 53: 
10,12,13 56:2,5 

standing 111 81:5 
start 141 17:9 22:6 39:17 83:21 
started 12J 1:17 34:10 
starting 121 17:7 54:1 
starts 121 4:20 1:14 
state 151 7:18 9:12 50:20 53:25 82: 
24 

stated 131 3:2.2 9:23 27:16 
s tatement 111 12:14 
statements 111 56:17 
states 141 2:19 5:22 12:20 13:24 
stating I2J 21:4 32:3 
stay 121 20:9 22:5 
stays 111 21 :2 
steep 111 1:9 
step 121 29:16 53:17 
stick 111 27:22 
stipulate 131 9:20,22 32:9 
stipulated 111 54:8 
stipulations 111 14:10 
stone 111 54:7 
atop 12116:13 50:13 
storage 12J 43:2 64:19 
stories 111 36:20 

Sheet a 

Moab City Board of Adjustments August 28, 2008 
stonn 131 51 :6 54:12,15 thanks 111 89:19 
street 121 23:15 40:17 themselves 111 12:4 
streeta (7) 8:1 12:20 19:11,11 23: therefore 131 2:16 3:12 14:6 
17,18 38:1 they' ll 121 35:12 40:10 

strictly 111 119:1 they've 131 30:10 31 :21 47:3 
stringent 1•1 29:1 40:3 53:10.11 thic k 111 6:16 
strong 111 52:22 thinking 111 113:11 
structure 111 5:25 thorough 111 48:5 
structured 111 38:8 tho ugh 1•11:8 9:23 34:19 57:4 
structures 12J 4:22 13:7 threaten I2J 13:8,8 
struggling 111 18:25 three 13121:23 22:7 37:2 
studied 111 23:23 throughout 111 57:6 
studies 1-41 1:1,2,22 31 :10 title 1-41 3:18 4:12 5:6 30:20 
study 121 7:22 31:12 today 131 1:5 4:9 30:10 
stuff 121 35:17 47:3 together 151 13:17 27:5 29:10 38:4 
stumbled 111 48:25 59:15 
stupid 111 57:22 tom 111 11:12 
style 111 38:19 tonight (2) 47:3 50:12 
subdivision 131 21:10 29:24 43:14 too k 11117:4 
subdivisions 111 12:22 too ls 111 42:21 
submission 141 20:17 21:21 29:11 topic 111 54:1 
51:2 topo 111 21:17 

submissions 111 29:9 topography 131 6:3 15:10 31:1 
submit 181 29:17 41:6 50:24 52:6 tota ll-41 20:8 21:4,6 48:24 
56:9,13 113:8 14:2 totals 111 42:22 

submittals 151 3:25 18:13 41:3,22 touching 111 21:15 
50:15 towards 111 15:2 

submitted 1191 1:25 4:4 5:2 12:1 town 111 45:9 
14:11 111:21 11:15 11:2 20:21 24: trac t 111 21:5 
4 25:3 30:9,13 35:20 37:23 47:6 tracts 131 32:14 33:12.21 
59:3,4,14 traffic I7J 9:9,11.14 18:24 19:11 31 : 

subsection 1211 4:22 5:14,25 8:12, 10,12 
18,20,21 1:5,16,23.24 9:8,10,15, trail (141 4:3 13:2414:5,7 15:4,8 23: 
18 12:19,24,24 15:9 25:1 32:12 11 25:18 27:1 37:16 38:14,18,20 

subsequent 111 3:15 40:14 
sufficient 111 32:11 trails 1231 9:9 13:18 14:2 15:5 16: 
sufficiently 111 10:19 13 18:1 ,8,10,23,24 19:17,20 23:8, 
suggest 11131 :5 12 25:10,14 27:2,3 21:11,13 30:14 
suggestion 111 12:11 38:17 41 :13 
suggestions 111 32:7 train 111 80:20 
summary 151 18:25 17:1 ,4 59:4,7 tras h 121 20:8,8 
supply 111 50:11 travel 111 37:12 
suppose 131 9:21,22 21:5 treated [1)18:19 
surplus 111 48:24 tuesday 111 67:7 
surprised 111 58:4 turn 111 2:6 
surrounding 121 20:24 36:18 two 1101 20:15 22:12,15 34:8 36:20 
sys tem 1101 13:24 16:4,8 26:18 21: 37:5,9 42:19 66:10,19 
11 40:14 54:12,13,16 85:19 two-car 111 22:15 

systems 121 14:5,7 type 1•1 24:13 38:10 40:11 44:6 

T types I7J 18:6 38:11 ,13 52:3,17,18 
63:13 

table flll 3:1 21:8 24:5 33:3,8 35: typically 111 53:20 
12 

talks 131 30:2 54:21 55:14 u 
tall (11 45:23 udot l11 9:12 
tank 111 65:20 ultimately 111 56:10 
tanks 111 58:19 unanimous 111 69:15 
technical 111 12:11 under I25J 4:18,22 5:3,4,6,13,14 6: 
tells 121 21:25 33:24 3 8:15 9:18 12:3,19,22,23,2413: 
temporarily 111 22:16 16,20,22,23 15:9 32:12 33:3 45:16 
temporary 111 22:4 57:16 61:14 
tennis 111 18:11 underground 111 58:18 
tenns 111 52:22 understand 112112:15 16:14,18 
text (2) 6:6 33:20 21 :14 32:4 36:24 52:12 53:3 67: 

Carolyn Enckson, CSR, CCT 
523-11 86 

11 ,14,14 68:8 
understanding 131 14:16 25:7 30: 
19 

unfortunately 111 43:2 
unit I2J 23:2 42:19 
units r•l 23:24 38:7,9,10 
unless 141 31 :1 33:1 56:1,18 
unused 111 48:14 
upstairs 111 57:13 
urcp 111 2:19 
uses 1121 40:11 44:5,6,16 50:5 52: 
17 64:17,17,18,20,20,25 

using 131 17:14 38:19 68:19 
utah 151 1:23 2:17,20 4:3 50:20 
utilities 141 11:14 30:17 41:4,13 
utility 131 9:8,15 87:1 

v 
vague (11 68:20 
value 151 8:14,23 7:1 ,8 20:3 
various flll 18:6 21:15 37:23 40:16 
50:18 56:11 

vegetation 111 8:3 
vehicle 131 42:8 43:5 14:13 
vehicles 181 12:24 42:24,25 43:4, 
14,17 

versions Rl 25:16,16 
vicinity 111 54:6 
view 111 31:7 
village 111 63:25 
violated 121 50:5 14:3 
violates 111 10:22 
violation 191 4:13 7:17,17 10:25 
11 :11 13:6,10 14:6 42:10 

violations 151 2:16 3:12 11:16,17 
27:24 

visible 111 22:1 
vision 111 9:4 
visual 131 9:19 22:25 38:22 
visually (5) 5:17,23 1:25 12:22 13: 
3 

voltage 111 40:10 
vote 111 11:15 
voted 111 48:7 

w 
waived 111 2:23 
waiver 121 2:20 3:2 
waives 111 2:21 
walk 111 21:12 
walked 111 38:18 
walking 111 21:13 
wall 131 21 :25 33:8 37:4 
walled 111 21:24 
wanted 151 24:9 25:12 21:23 48:8 
57:13 

wanting 111 11:5 
wants 121 31 :2 43:25 
wash 17J 42:18 43:10 44:7 14:20 
17:1 68:15 81:8 

waste 131 48:10 54:22 55:1 9 
water (351 13:8 19:21 44:22 45:8 
47:19 48:5,6,12,13,16,24 49:1,8 
50:10,11 ,16,18 61 :1,6,22 52:6,22 

speaker- water 



63:2o4 M :1 ,12, 13,15,20 55:1o4 57: 
2o4 81 :8,13,17 82:2 85:23 

wattage 121 40:11 ,19 
week tel 58:2o4 80:o4,2o4 81 :2,2 63: 
2o4 

weight 111 57:<4 
welts 111 66:6 
west 111 41:8 
whatever 121 17:10 43:20 
whatsoever 121 6:5 14:3 
where's 11122:11 
whereupon 111 89:20 
whether !181 1:22 8:2,10 1:25 12:8 
24:9 30:20 31:7 37:12 39:10 49:5 
80:5 81 :2 84:5,6 68:2• 

white !31 3:16 4:11 35:17 
whole 151 14:20 28:6,10 40:13 43: 
13 

wlde l1l l :o4 
widened 111 38:21 
widening 111 38:21 
widths 111 11:13 
wild 111 24:11 
within (8) 21 :25 37:12 M :o4 80:10, 
15 81:25 82:16 88:1 

without 161 14:21 15:2,8 47:12 H : 
17 61:6 

wondering 111 35:17 
word 171 8:1-4 7:o4,15 14:1 28:9 o43: 
2 55:13 

words 171 11:8 21:2-4 23:6 25:18 
37:21 48:20 62:17 

work 1•1 11:16 38:17 39:1 47:21 
worked f3J 1:12 41:19 &1:17 
working !31 43:16 51:2<4 M :8 
works 111 23:1o4 
workshop 1•1 57:8,9 58:3,7 
workshops 111 57:6 

X 
x' !11 21:25 

y 
year !31 21:9 30:11 81:21 
years 111 68:10 
yells 111 68:4 

z 
zone (301 9:18 21:6 21:6 31:1 38:6, 
8 40:21 50:7,2o4 52:11 ,13,17 53:1 , 
3,5,8,10,12,21 65:17,2-4 83:13,13, 
18 15:7,7,8,23,25,25 

zones [9) so: 19 52:3,8,9, 1 o M :-4 
66:9,10,23 

zoning !31 3:1 -4 62:16 84:7 

Sheet I 

Moab City Board of Adjustments August 28, 2008 

Carolyn Erickson, CSR, CCT 
523-1186 

water - zoning 


	CCI00006.pdf
	CCI00007.pdf
	CCI00008.pdf
	CCI00009.pdf

